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Our humorous new TV advertisements communicate the message that our guests are so 
comfortable that they feel at home...

... always at home
our emphasis has always been on home-away-from-home, 

friendly service and people caring for people.
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Group highlights and profile

For the year ended 30 June 2004 % 2003

Revenue (R’m) 335,8 15 292,9

EBITDA (R’m) 174,4 14 152,5

Operating income (R’m) 151,2 16 130,2

Headline earnings (R’m) 100,9 15 87,5

Fully diluted headline earnings 
per share (cents) 238,0 15 207,0

Dividends declared per share (cents) 168,0 38 122,0

Cash generated by operations (R’m) 180,3 21 149,5

Net asset value per share (cents) 935,5 14 822,2

The City Lodge Hotels group 
has come a long way from 
its relatively humble 
beginnings – a 123-room 
City Lodge in Randburg, 
opened on 1 August 1985.

Through the vision of founder, 

Swiss-born Hans Enderle, the City 

Lodge group has grown from a single 

hotel in 1985 to a multi-brand chain 

offering a variety of locations, feature 

and budget choices to business and 

leisure travellers.

From the start the emphasis was 

placed on quality accommodation, 

homely ambience and friendly service 

– still important attributes of the group 

in the 21st century and core reasons 

why guests choose our hotels.

After pioneering the quality 

selected services hotel concept in 

South Africa, the group has grown 

substantially and diversified its product 

offering to meet different travellers’ 

needs.

Commitment to service 
excellence from a highly motivated 

and dedicated staff is a common 

thread throughout the group’s hotels 

which have developed a loyal base of 

regular clients over the years and an 

ever-growing number of new guests. 
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1985 –  the fi rst City Lodge opened on 1 August 

in Randburg.

1990 –  the second-tier Town Lodge concept 

was started and has proved highly popular.

1992 –  the group successfully listed on 

the JSE Securities Exchange South Africa.

1995 –  the group acquired a 50% interest in the 

companies associated with the upmarket 

Courtyard chain.

1995 –  the group opened its fi rst Road Lodge, 

a concept aimed mainly at budget-conscious 

travellers.

1995 –  on the occasion of the group’s 10th 
anniversary on 1 August 1995, the 

City Lodge 10th Anniversary Employees Share 

Trust was launched which enabled all employees 

to become shareholders.

2003 –  the group sells more than one million 

room nights for the fi rst time in a fi nancial year.

2004 –  the group again announces record 
results and for the fi rst time in a fi nancial 

year, achieves net profi t in excess of 

R100 million.

2004 –  with six Courtyards (424 rooms), 

eleven City Lodges (1 685 rooms), 

seven Town Lodges (815 rooms) 

and thirteen Road Lodges 

(1 125 rooms), the City Lodge group has 4 049 

rooms and ranks amongst the 250 largest hotel 

chains in the world. 2

City Lodge Hotels Limited 2004



76%
Average occupancy

R101 million
Headline earnings

15%
Increase in headline earnings 
per share

38%
Increase in dividends
per share

The City Lodge Hotels group has established 
an outstanding reputation since our inception 
in 1985. 

All the hotels in the group have been custom-designed and built, 

and provide quality, affordable accommodation, ensuring the 

comfort and well-being of all our guests.

Whether you choose the elegant fi rst class sophistication of the 

Courtyard Hotels; the smart alternative which the business class 

City Lodge offers; the value-for-money Town Lodge; or the class-

beating standards at the Road Lodge, you will be sure of 

consistently high quality, outstanding value-for-money, and a real 

warmth in the home-from-home welcome you will receive on 

your arrival.

Whilst each of the hotels offers all the services and comforts one 

would expect, which have been carefully selected with the guest’s 

specifi c needs in mind, the core vision remains the same 

throughout the group:

“People caring for people

We will be recognised as the preferred southern African 

hotel group.

Through dedicated leadership and teamwork we will 

demonstrate our consistent commitment to delivering 

caring service with style and grace.

We will constantly enhance our GUEST experience through 

our passionate people, ongoing innovation and leading 

edge technology.

Our integrity, values and ongoing investment in our 

people and hotels will provide exceptional returns to 

stakeholders and continued sustainable growth.”

Group highlights and vision
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More reasons to make yourself at home

The Courtyard Hotels offer the discerning guest an exclusive 

and gracious alternative to an ordinary hotel. 

Each Courtyard Hotel has its own distinct atmosphere, 

although they all share an air of elegance and charm not 

readily found today. There are several accommodation 

options available, from the studio through to one or two 

bedroomed units, each of which offers a lounge area with 

a dining table, a kitchenette with refrigerator and 

microwave oven. 

We also provide a personal shopping service. Should you 

wish to have your kitchenette stocked with the finest quality 

food and beverages prior to your arrival, contact us for an 

itemised shopping list and we will gladly make these 

arrangements for you.

Rooms
●  Studio, one or two bedroom luxury 

rooms.

●  Well appointed bathroom(s).

●  Private access to your own room.

●  Discreet fully equipped kitchenette.

●  Personal electronic safe in each room 
(big enough for laptops).

●  International direct dial telephone.

●  M-Net and DStv.

●  Air-conditioned rooms.

Services
●  Woolworths personalised shopping 

service.

●  Intimate lounge area.

●  Courtesy bar (17:00 – 19:00).

●  24 hour enhanced security.

●  Secure parking just metres from 
your door.

●  An elegant boardroom for guest use.

●  Personal use of guest office and internet.

●  Sparkling pool in landscaped 
garden setting.

●  Full English and Continental 
breakfast daily.

●  In room dining by arrangement with 
local restaurants.

●  Same-day laundry and dry cleaning 
service.

●  Launderette 24 hours.

●  Ice machine.

Current locations
Cape Town, Johannesburg (Eastgate, 
Rosebank, Sandton), Pretoria (Arcadia) 
and Port Elizabeth.

Group activities 

City Lodge Hotels Limited 2004
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We’ll make you feel like you’re at home

City Lodge has become a household name in the southern 

African market, providing guests with comfortable and 

tastefully decorated rooms which are the ideal place to 

make your own when you come home at the end of your 

day – whether you have been working or playing. 

Each room has an en-suite bathroom where you may choose 

to soak in a hot bath or separate shower while deciding 

where to dine that evening. 

Rooms
●  Spacious air-conditioned room with 

double bed or twin beds.

●  Television with selected DStv channels.

●  Bathroom with bath and separate 
shower.

●  Tea and coffee making facilities. 

●  Rooms with sleeper-sofa available 
at selected hotels on request.

●  Rooms with two separate beds for twin 
accommodation.

●  Electronic safe large enough to 
accommodate a laptop.

●  Desk with lighting and plugs for easy 
connectivity.

●  Dedicated line to internet.

Services
●  Internet area.

●  Mini gym.

●  Boardroom.

●  Convenient locations, close to 
major routes.

●  Full English and Continental 
breakfast daily.

●  24 hour reception and check-in.

●  Sundowner bar.

●  24 hour vending machines stocked with 
snacks and cold beverage items.

●  Fax and photocopy services available.

●  Same-day laundry and dry cleaning.

●  Sparkling swimming pool.

●  Free and convenient parking.

Current locations
Bloemfontein, Cape Town (Pinelands, 
V&A Waterfront, GrandWest), Durban 
(Central, Umhlanga Ridge), Johannesburg  
(Johannesburg International Airport, 
Bryanston, Sandton Katherine Street, 
Sandton Morningside) and Port Elizabeth.

Group activities (continued)

... This makes them end 
up confusing our hotels 

for their very own homes!

City Lodge Hotels Limited 2004
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Rooms
●  Fully carpeted, spacious air-conditioned 

room with double or twin beds.

●  Television and radio with all 
popular channels.

●  Interleading family rooms available.

●  En-suite bathroom with maxi shower.

●  Tea and coffee-making facilities.

Services
●  Convenient locations, close to major 

routes.

●  Free, easy and secure parking.

●  24 hour reception and check-in.

●  Full English and Continental breakfast 
daily.

●  Sundowner bar.

●  24 hour vending machine for snacks and 
beverages.

●  Fax and photocopy services available.

●  Same-day laundry and dry cleaning.

Current locations
Bellville, Johannesburg (Johannesburg 
International Airport, Midrand, Sandton 
Grayston Drive), Nelspruit, Polokwane and 
Pretoria (Menlo Park).

Group activities (continued)

Stay smart

Very much like City Lodges, Town Lodges are also 

strategically located adjacent to motorways and major 

routes.

The rooms are slightly smaller than City Lodge, but offer 

similar stylish décor and the customary comfort. En-suite 

you will find a maxi-shower with a glass door, a tiled built-

in seat, a wall-mounted and a hand-held showerhead.

9
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Why pay more?

The best value in the City Lodge family of hotels is 

undoubtedly to be found at the Road Lodge.

These hotels offer unbelievable value-for-money; the same 

rate whether there is one, two or even three people sharing 

the comfortably furnished and tastefully decorated room. Rooms
● Fully carpeted and air-conditioned.

● Colour television and radio channels.

●  En-suite bathroom with shower,
toilet and hand basin.

●  Rooms with double or twin beds, 
with single sleeper chair available in 
selected rooms.

●  Working desk.

Services
●  A light breakfast is available daily.

●  24 hour vending machines stocked with 
snacks and beverages.

●  Ample and secure parking.

● 24 hour reception service.

●  Coin and card call-boxes for trunk calls.

Current locations
Cape Town (N1 City, Cape Town 
International Airport), Durban, 
Johannesburg (Brakpan – Carnival City, 
Germiston Lake, Isando, Johannesburg 
International Airport, Randburg, Rivonia), 
Kimberley, Nelspruit, Port Elizabeth and 
Rustenburg.

Group activities (continued)



Non-executive directors

Hans Enderle (62)✛

Chairman and founder
48 years’ experience in the hotel industry

David Coutts-Trotter (42) ◆�

BBus Sci, BAcc, CA(SA)

Appointed to the board in 1996
Deputy Chief Executive of Sun International

Buddy Hawton (67) ✛

FCIS

Appointed to the board in 1994
Director of companies

Independent non-executive directors

Frank Kilbourn (42) ◆�

BCom, LLM, BA (Hons), HDip Tax

Appointed to the board in 1996
Director of companies

Nigel Matthews (59) ✛�

MA (Oxon), MBA

Appointed to the board in 1989
Director of companies

Dr Keith Shongwe (40) 

BSc, MB ChB

Appointed to the board in 2002
Business development executive

Executive directors

Clifford Ross (47) ◆✱

Chief executive
30 years’ experience in the hotel industry

Andrew Widegger (38) ◆✱

Financial director
Chartered Accountant (SA)
11 years with the company

HANS ENDERLE  ❘  DAVID COUTTS-TROTTER  ❘  BUDDY HAWTON  ❘  FRANK KILBOURN  ❘  NIGEL MATTHEWS  ❘  DR KEITH SHONGWE
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Executive committee

Clifford Ross (47)◆✱

Chief executive
17 years with the company

Andrew Widegger (38) ◆✱

Financial director
11 years with the company

Tony Balabanoff (44)✱

Divisional director – operations
18 years with the company

Gary Bisset (50)◆✱

Divisional director – operations
8 years with the company

Marcel Kobilski (40)◆✱

Divisional director – human resources
8 years with the company

Andrew Morris (35)✱

Divisional director – property and development
8 years with the company

Peter Schoeman (39)✱

Divisional director – sales and marketing
8 years with the company

Patrick Tate (48)✱

Divisional director – operations
16 years with the company

◆Member of  risk committee
✱Member of  executive committee

�Member of  audit committee 
✛Member of  remuneration and nominations committee

CLIFFORD ROSS  ❘  ANDREW WIDEGGER  ❘  TONY BALABANOFF  ❘  GARY BISSET  ❘  MARCEL KOBILSKI  ❘  ANDREW MORRIS  ❘  PETER SCHOEMAN  ❘  PATRICK TATE
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Dear stakeholder,

In its 19th year of operation, our group again built strongly on the solid 

foundations that have been laid over the past two decades with the emphasis 

continuing to be on making guests feel at home.

This emphasis is not something new. It’s always been at the heart of City Lodge 

activities since 1985. Importantly, it’s also not something that merely receives lip 

service – it’s backed up by our uniquely formulated training programmes and 

genuine commitment to guest satisfaction that’s stood us in good stead over the time 

it has taken to grow from a single hotel to a chain of 37 hotels across four brands.

Ours is a truly South African company which, after the recent opening of Road 

Lodge Rustenburg, is now represented in each of the country’s nine provinces.

With this national spread, it is gratifying to note how well-entrenched the 

recognition and penetration of our brands has become with the City Lodge 

“family” of hotels very much at home in South Africa, just as we concentrate on 

providing a temporary home for hundreds of thousands of domestic and foreign 

travellers every year.

But a company is more than its brands and products – it plays a much broader 

role in society. So it was a major achievement for the group to be included as one 

of only 51 listed companies in the JSE Securities Exchange’s Social Responsibility 

Index launched recently. Only companies that meet strict criteria relating to the 

environment, human resources, corporate governance, employment equity and 

skills development and corporate social investment are considered as participants 

for the index and City Lodge is one of only two smaller capitalisation listed 

companies to make the grade along with many of the biggest names in 

South African business.

It has long been a feature of the group’s activities to contribute to the upliftment 

of people in the areas where we operate through creating employment, making 

donations to worthy causes and generally acting as a solid and responsible 

corporate citizen.

Clifford Ross
Chief executive

Hans Enderle
Chairman
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FINANCIAL 

In the previous fi nancial year, the group celebrated selling 

one million room nights for the fi rst time. This year, another 

milestone was reached surpassing R100 million in net profi t. 

Since opening City Lodge Randburg in August 1985, net profi t 

has grown at an average annual compound rate of 52%, an 

achievement matched by few companies over a similar period.

Reaching the R100 million headline earnings mark was 

particularly notable as it came after the outstanding 

performance of the 2003 fi nancial year which had been aided 

by South Africa’s hosting of the World Summit on Sustainable 

Development and the Cricket World Cup.

During the past year, average occupancies were maintained at 

76% across the group. This contributed to Revenue increasing 

by 15% to R335,8 million. 

Net profi t rose 15% to R100.9 million and fully diluted headline 

earnings per share rose by the same percentage to 238 cents. 

Cash generation was again strong, growing by 21% to 

R180 million, of which R76 million was utilised to fund 

capital expenditure.

Signifi cantly, in the light of consistently strong cash fl ows and 

gearing having dropped to an all-time low of 16%, the board 

resolved to increase the dividend payout ratio to 70% of 

earnings per reporting period. This will not impact on the 

group’s ability to continue expanding its operations.

In the year under review, a fi nal dividend of R1,25 per share 

was declared, taking the annual payout to R1,68 per share 

compared to R1,22 in the previous year, an increase of 38%.

OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS 

Refl ecting our home-away-from-home emphasis, after a long 

absence, we returned to television advertising during the year 

to reinforce in a humorous way our strong branding and 

identity. These advertisements, which highlight the warmth and 

Reaching the R100 million 

profit mark was particularly 

notable as it came after the 

outstanding performance of  

the 2003 financial year 

which had been aided by 

South Africa’s hosting of  

the World Summit on 

Sustainable Development 

and the Cricket World Cup.

Chairman and chief executive’s report
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homely feel of our hotels, have been enthusiastically received, and with all the 

production costs having been expensed, will be a valuable investment for 

maintaining and building the group’s image and market share into the future.

During the past year the number of rooms sold increased by 4%, aided by a seven 

month contribution from City Lodge Umhlanga Ridge and a full year contribution 

from both Road Lodge Cape Town International Airport and 44 additional rooms 

added to the fl agship V&A Waterfront hotel in Cape Town. Each of the four brands 

– Courtyard, City Lodge, Town Lodge and Road Lodge performed strongly.

Road Lodge Rustenburg, a 90-room hotel, opened in the last week of June and 

has already made its mark as a valuable contributor of home-away-from-home 

budget accommodation in the country’s platinum capital.

Ensuring that facilities are maintained in a homely, comfortable and state-of-the-

art fashion, the “millennium” upgrade programme continues at Town Lodges after 

having been completed at City Lodges with City Lodge Morningside in 

Johannesburg the last hotel to be upgraded.

As part of the ongoing quest for service excellence, our “mystery guest” initiative 

was continued throughout the group’s hotels. This is a very effective means of 

fi nding out just how much at home our guests feel and for incentivising our 

employees for meeting and indeed exceeding guests’ expectations. It’s also 

another way of reinforcing the people caring for people attitude and philosophy 

that we have nurtured from day one.

Due to our value-for-money offerings which resulted in a certain amount of 

“trading down”, the strength of the rand against a range of foreign currencies has 

only had a limited impact on our operations which enjoyed another good year of 

international guest arrivals from abroad and elsewhere in Africa. This ideally 

complemented strong usage of our hotels by domestic business and holiday 

travellers. 

Travel trade events such as the World Travel Market in London and ITB in Berlin 

internationally and Indaba locally, again proved their worth in marketing our 

hotels and our country to a range of tour operators and other travel industry 

professionals. A notable trend is the growth in the number of Chinese visitors 

coming to South Africa and the group has established valuable ties with tour 

operators to build a greater presence in this exciting new market. This follows 

South Africa being offi cially accredited as an approved destination for Chinese 

holidaymakers.

Top:

Recently certificated 
National Qualification 
training assessors.

Bottom:

The City Lodge Academy 
committee and students.

Chairman and chief executive’s report (continued)
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Something to look forward to is South Africa’s 

hosting of the Soccer World Cup in 2010. It was a 

great thrill when the announcement was made in 

May and there will be valuable spin-offs for the 

hospitality industry in the lead-up to this massive 

event, during its staging, and more signifi cantly 

after all the on-the-fi eld excitement is over.

Another important development was the 

announcement by the Minister of Environmental 

Affairs and Tourism of the establishment of a 

transformation committee to formulate a BEE 

charter and scorecard for the hospitality industry. 

We are playing an important role in this initiative 

through chief executive Clifford Ross and independent 

non-executive director, Frank Kilbourn having been 

invited to become members of the committee.

In this regard it is well worth noting that City Lodge 

was recently rated 20th out of the JSE Securities 

Exchange’s top 200 companies in a BEE survey 

published by the Financial Mail in partnership with 

rating agency Empowerdex. 

We are fully committed to the BEE process, and in 

addition to having a sub-committee of the board to 

formulate our own internal scorecard and approach 

to BEE, we have invited Empowerdex to conduct an 

audit of our organisation to assess our status with a 

view to awarding us with an offi cial rating.

LOOKING AHEAD

The 2005 fi nancial year will benefi t from full 

contributions from City Lodge Umhlanga Ridge and 

Road Lodge Rustenburg. It is also envisaged that 

announcements will be made on new sites to 

expand the group’s portfolio of hotels.

With trading conditions anticipated to remain 

favourable, it is expected that earnings will 

continue to grow.

THANKS

Our guests, staff, shareholders and suppliers 

have again all played a major role in the group’s 

success – these are all important people in our 

people business and their efforts are greatly 

appreciated.

Chairman and chief executive’s report (continued)
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R’m 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998

Seven-year financial review

Consolidated
income statements

Revenue 335,8 292,9 231,9 193,3 166,2 149,7 142,2

EBITDA 174,4 152,5 112,8 89,3 78,4 74,4 73,9

Depreciation and 
amortisation (23,2) (22,3) (21,7) (18,6) (16,3) (14,3) (12,4)

Operating profit 151,2 130,2 91,1 70,7 62,1 60,1 61,5

Exceptional items — — — — — — 3,7

Net interest paid (0,6) (2,0) (8,6) (15,0) (11,3) (9,6) (10,3)

Income/(loss) from 
joint venture 3,0 3,5 0,9 0,4 (0,4) 1,0 0,8

Profit before taxation 153,6 131,7 83,4 56,1 50,4 51,5 55,7

Taxation (52,7) (44,3) (28,0) (18,9) (17,3) (15,4) (19,5)

Net profit 100,9 87,4 55,4 37,2 33,1 36,1 36,2

Determination of 
headline earnings

Net profit 100,9 87,4 55,4 37,2 33,1 36,1 36,2

Exceptional items — — — — — (2,2) (3,7)

Headline earnings 100,9 87,4 55,4 37,2 33,1 33,9 32,5
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Consolidated 
balance sheets

Assets

Non-current assets 481,2 426,9 395,6 372,8 312,6 286,3 299,3

Property, plant and 
equipment 439,8 385,8 351,1 327,8 267,0 240,1 227,0

Intangible assets — 0,8 1,7 2,5 3,3 4,2 5,0

Investments and loans 37,4 36,5 39,3 39,3 39,3 39,3 64,8

Deferred taxation 4,0 3,8 3,5 3,2 3,0 2,7 2,5

Current assets 49,0 56,6 38,0 18,2 42,1 43,1 38,2

Total assets 530,2 483,5 433,6 391,0 354,7 329,4 337,5

Equity and liabilities

Total shareholders’ 
funds 394,1 345,0 306,1 273,0 252,3 235,0 240,4

Capital and reserves 394,1 345,0 306,1 198,0 177,3 160,0 165,4

Convertible debentures — — — 75,0 75,0 75,0 75,0

Non-current liabilities 95,4 95,2 90,8 86,4 80,7 76,5 75,8

Deferred taxation 42,4 34,1 32,3 27,9 22,2 18,0 17,3

Borrowings 53,0 61,1 58,5 58,5 58,5 58,5 58,5

Current liabilities 40,7 43,3 36,7 31,6 21,7 17,9 21,3

Total equity and 
liabilities 530,2 483,5 433,6 391,0 354,7 329,4 337,5

Seven-year financial review (continued)

R’m 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998
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Seven-year financial review (continued)

 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998

Ordinary share performance

Shares in issue 000 42 125 41 962 41 910 28 274 28 274 28 274 28 248

Weighted average
shares in issue 000 42 033 41 939 40 752 28 274 28 274 28 253 27 763

Weighted average convertible 
debentures in issue 000 — — 1 158 13 636 13 636 13 636 13 636

Fully diluted headline 
earnings per share cents 238,0 207,0 132,8 100,6 91,6 93,9 90,6

Dividends per share cents 168,0 122,0 78,0 62,5 56,0 56,0 54,0

Dividend cover times 1,4 1,7 1,7 1,7 1,7 1,7 1,7

Net asset value per share cents 935 822 730 651 602 561 574

Net operating cash flow 
per share cents 300,3 260,4 229,4 214,2 189,1 190,7 152,7

Profitability and liquidity

EBITDA margin % 51,9 52,1 48,6 46,2 47,1 49,7 52,0

Operating margin % 45,0 44,5 39,6 37,4 37,7 40,2 43,8

Effective tax rate % 34,3 33,6 33,5 33,8 34,3 30,0 35,1

Return on ordinary
shareholders’ funds % 27,3 26,9 22,2 20,4 19,9 20,9 21,7

Interest bearing debt to 
total shareholders’ funds % 15,5 19,4 19,1 25,0 23,2 24,9 24,3

Net interest cover times 267,6 67,0 10,7 4,8 5,5 6,3 6,0

Current ratio :1 1,5 1,5 1,0 0,6 1,9 2,4 1,8

Headline earnings per share

Net profit before exceptional items divided by 
the weighted average number of ordinary shares 
in issue.

Fully diluted headline earnings per share

Headline earnings adjusted by the interest, 
after the tax shielding effect on the convertible 
debentures, divided by the weighted average 
number of ordinary shares in issue including the 
convertible debentures and any outstanding share 
options in issue.

DEFINITIONS

Dividend cover

Fully diluted headline earnings per share divided by dividends 
declared per share.

Net asset value per share

Total share and convertible debenture holders’ funds divided by the 
number of ordinary shares and convertible debentures in issue at the 
year-end.

Net operating cash fl ow per share

Net cash inflow from operating activities, before dividends, divided 
by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue.
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Seven-year financial review (continued)

 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998

Stock exchange performance

Market price per ordinary
share

– Closing Rand 25,75 18,30 12,15 8,50 7,50 8,00 11,50

– Highest Rand 28,50 18,65 13,00 8,75 9,50 11,50 22,00

– Lowest Rand 17,60 11,20 8,10 7,00 7,00 4,25 9,80

Market price per
convertible debenture

– Closing Rand n/a n/a n/a 8,60 7,20 7,50 11,00

– Highest Rand n/a n/a 8,70 8,70 9,00 11,00 21,00

– Lowest Rand n/a n/a 8,45 7,00 7,00 5,20 9,95

Total market capitalisation Rm 1 084,7 767,9 509,2 357,6 310,2 328,5 474,9

Fully diluted closing 
price earnings multiple  times 10,8 8,8 9,1 8,4 8,2 8,5 12,7

Volume traded

– Ordinary shares 000 10 007 5 594 9 021 3 566 5 497 1 803 2 770

– Convertible debentures 000 n/a n/a 101 432 2 152 2 386 3 592

Other

Number of hotels  37 35 34 32 29 26 26

Number of rooms  4 049 3 791 3 658 3 466 3 196 2 920 2 920

Group average occupancy % 76 76 72 71 69 70 73

EBITDA

Earnings before interest, taxation, depreciation and 
amortisation.

EBITDA margin

EBITDA expressed as a percentage of revenue.

Operating margin

Operating profit expressed as a percentage of revenue.

Effective tax rate

Taxation per the income statement expressed as a 
percentage of profit before taxation.

DEFINITIONS (continued)

Return on ordinary shareholders’ funds

Headline earnings attributable to ordinary shareholders expressed 
as a percentage of average ordinary shareholders’ funds.

Interest bearing debt to total shareholders’ funds

Interest bearing debt expressed as a percentage of total share and 
convertible debenture holders’ funds.

Net interest cover

Operating profit divided by interest paid less interest received.

Current ratio

Current assets divided by current liabilities.
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The 20th of May 2004 saw the launch of the 

Johannesburg Securities Exchange Socially 

Responsible Investment (“SRI”) Index. The inclusion 

of City Lodge Hotels Limited in the Index both 

vindicates the company’s efforts to align itself to the 

principle of the “triple bottom line” and, more 

importantly, provides it with a benchmark by which 

it can continue to monitor and improve on its 

performance in this regard.

The company will therefore report on its 

performance, in matters of corporate citizenship 

and sustainability, in relation to the criteria 

against which it is judged for inclusion in the Index. 

These being:

●  Economic sustainability

●  Environmental sustainability

●  Social sustainability 

1. ECONOMIC SUSTAINABILITY:

Introduction

In aligning itself with the strategic requirement to be 

a responsible corporate citizen the company has 

envisioned a future that supports the concepts of 

sustainability in all respects.

“People Caring for People

●  We will be recognised as the preferred southern 

African hotel group.

●  Through dedicated leadership and teamwork we 

will demonstrate our consistent commitment to 

delivering caring service with style and grace. 

●  We will constantly enhance our Guest 

experience through our passionate people, 

ongoing innovation and leading edge 

technology.

●  Our integrity, values and ongoing investment in 

our people and hotels will provide exceptional 

returns to stakeholders and ensure continued, 

sustainable growth.”

The Executive Committee, with strategic direction 

from the board, is charged with ensuring that the 

environmental, economic and social challenges 

facing the company are identified, policies defined 

and mitigating strategies implemented and 

monitored.  Good corporate governance forms the 

foundation for the group’s efforts to improve its 

sustainability practices and performance.

GOVERNANCE

The company and its board of directors confirm their 

commitment to the principles of openness, integrity 

and accountability as advocated in the Code of 

Corporate Practices and Conduct of the King Report 

on Corporate Governance 2002 (King II).

Responsible corporate citizenship and sustainability report
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In supporting the code, the directors recognise the 

need to ensure that its relationships and business 

dealings with all stakeholders are conducted with 

integrity and honesty and in accordance with 

generally accepted corporate practices.

The board has carefully considered the implications 

and effect of King II and is of the opinion that the 

company currently complies with all the significant 

requirements set out in King II and the JSE Securities 

Exchange SA Listings Requirements.

Board of directors

A written charter defining the responsibilities of the 

board in relation to matters contained in the King II 

report and relevant legislation has been formally 

adopted by the board.

The board is a unitary structure and the focal point 

of corporate governance. The performance and 

affairs of the company are ultimately the 

responsibility of the board of directors, which retains 

full and effective control over the company and 

determines policies and processes to ensure the 

integrity of the company’s risk management and 

internal controls.

Strategic direction is given to the company by the 

board which monitors the effective implementation 

of the board plans and strategies by executive 

management. Levels of responsibility have been 

established for executive management, whilst 

decisions of a material nature are taken by the 

board. The board ensures that the company 

communicates openly and promptly with its 

shareholders and relevant stakeholders.

The information needs of the board are well defined 

and the board has unrestricted access to all the 

company’s information, records, documents and 

property. If necessary, the directors may take 

independent professional advice at the company’s 

expense.

Board composition

The board currently comprises two executive 

directors and six non-executive directors, three of 

whom are independent non-executives. The roles of 

Chairman and Chief Executive are separate and the 

Chairman has no executive functions.

The board is considered to be effective in size 

and composition and the non-executive directors 

possess the calibre, credibility, skills and experience 

required to act independently of executive 

management.

No directors have any fixed terms of appointment. 

The board has implemented a programme to ensure 

a staggered rotation of directors which is in 

accordance with its articles of association.

Board and director evaluation

The board has an agreed process to evaluate the 

performance of the board, the Chairman and the 

Chief Executive.

The board has been evaluated by means of a self-

assessment questionnaire which was completed by 

each director. These were collated and the results 

reported on to the board by the Chairman. 

It is intended that the Chairman of the Remuneration 

Committee will canvas individual directors for their 

opinions on the performance of the Chairman of the 

board and provide feedback on the results on a one 

on one basis to the Chairman.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for 

evaluating the performance of the Chief Executive.  

Responsible corporate citizenship and sustainability report (continued)
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Board committees

The board meets at least quarterly and has 

constituted a number of committees to address 

matters requiring specialised attention. Each 

committee reports regularly, formally and fully on its 

activities to the board.

The following is a list of board and committee 

meetings attended by each director during the year:

   Remu-  Exec-
  Audit neration Risk utive
  commit- commit- commit- commit-
 Board tee tee tee tee

No. of meetings 4 3 3 4 9

H R Enderle 4 — 3 — —

D C Coutts-Trotter 4 3 — 4 —

D A Hawton 4 — 3 — —

F W J Kilbourn 4 3 — 4 —

I N Matthews 4 3 3 —  —

C Ross 4 — 3* 4 9

K I M Shongwe 4 — — — —

A C Widegger 4  3* — 4 9

*by invitation
— not a member

Audit committee

The audit committee comprises three non-executive 

directors, the majority of whom are independent 

non-executive directors and is chaired by an 

independent non-executive director.

Both the internal and external auditors have 

unrestricted access to the audit committee. The audit 

committee meets at least three times per year and 

the meetings are attended by the external and 

internal auditors, the financial director and other 

invitees considered appropriate.

The committee is responsible for reviewing 

accounting, auditing, internal control and financial 

reporting matters to ensure that an effective control 

environment is maintained in the group. The 

committee also monitors proposed changes in 

accounting policy, reviews the internal audit function 

and discusses the accounting implications of major 

transactions.

The committee evaluates the independence, 

effectiveness and performance of the external 

auditors, and considers whether any non-audit 

services rendered by such auditors, substantively 

impairs their independence.

The audit committee meets separately with the 

external and internal auditors without management 

present at least once a year.

The audit committee has adopted formal terms of 

reference, approved by the board, and believes that 

it has fulfilled its responsibilities and complied with 

its terms of reference during the year under review.

Remuneration and nomination committee

The remuneration and nomination committee 

reviews and approves the remuneration and terms 

of employment of the executive directors and 

executive committee members in accordance with 

its remuneration philosphy. When appropriate and 

required, it also identifies, reviews and makes 

recommendations to the board on new board 

appointments.

The committee comprises three non-executive 

directors, is chaired by an independent non-

executive director and has adopted written terms of 

reference which have been approved by the board.

The remuneration policy, in terms of a decision 

taken by the board during the previous financial 

year, is to ensure that the remuneration levels of the 

senior executives of the group are maintained within 

the third quartile of those levels that pertain to 

companies of comparable size. It was agreed that the 

process of moving the remuneration packages to the 

Responsible corporate citizenship and sustainability report (continued)
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targeted levels would be achieved over a three year 

period. The process will be completed with the 

implementation of the new remuneration levels for 

the 2006 financial year.

In determining the applicable target remuneration 

packages, each of the senior executive’s 

remuneration levels have been benchmarked by an 

independent consultant, whereafter comparisons 

have been made for each executive to appropriate 

remuneration surveys.

An increased percentage of the remuneration 

package, compared to previous practice and in line 

with the relevant remuneration surveys, is now 

variable and linked to the annual achievement of 

individual and business objectives and the delivery 

of shareholder value.

Fees payable to the non-executive directors for their 

services as directors and for their participation in the 

activities of the committees are put forward to the 

committee by the executive directors who make use 

of a market review of non-executive director’s 

remuneration. The proposed fees are then placed 

before the board before being put to the annual 

general meeting for approval.

Risk committee

The board of directors is responsible for monitoring 

and reviewing the risk management strategy of the 

company. The risk committee assists the board in 

fulfilling this responsibility. The primary objective of 

the risk committee is accordingly to monitor, develop 

and communicate the processes for managing risks 

throughout the company and to regularly report to 

the board on the effectiveness of the risk 

management process.

The committee comprises two executive directors, 

two non-executive directors and two divisional 

directors. The committee meets at least twice per 

year, is chaired by an independent non-executive 

director and has adopted a mandate and terms of 

reference which have been approved by the board.

The company’s top risks have been identified, ranked 

and documented in a comprehensive risk register 

which has been adopted by the board. This has been 

done in conjunction with independent consultants 

and the group’s auditors. The register is updated and 

reviewed on an annual basis, or as often as 

circumstances necessitate. Ownership of each risk 

has been assigned to the appropriate senior 

executive and mitigating strategies agreed for each 

risk. The key risks are monitored by the executive 

committee on an ongoing basis.

Executive committee

The executive committee is chaired by the Chief 

Executive and is made up of the financial director 

and the six divisional directors. The committee meets 

regularly and plays a key role in implementing the 

strategies and policies determined by the board as 

well as in managing and monitoring the operational 

aspects of the business in accordance with approved 

budgets and in compliance with best management 

and operating practices.

Internal audit

The internal audit function has been outsourced to 

the Internal Audit Services division of KPMG Services 

(Pty) Limited. KPMG Inc. are the company’s external 

auditors. The board and audit committee are satisfied 

that the internal and external audit functions are 

sufficiently independent.

The internal audit function assists management and 

the board of directors by performing independent 

evaluations of the adequacy and efficacy of the 

group’s internal controls, financial reporting 

Responsible corporate citizenship and sustainability report (continued)
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mechanisms and records, information systems and 

operations. In the reporting on the adequacy of 

these controls it provides additional assurance 

regarding the safeguarding of group assets and 

financial information. 

The purpose, authority and responsibility of the 

internal auditors is formally defined in an internal 

audit charter which has been approved by the board.

The internal audit function reports at all audit 

committee meetings and has unrestricted access to 

the chairman of the board and the chairman of the 

audit committee.

Company secretary

The financial director of the company serves as the 

company secretary and is responsible to the board 

for ensuring that board procedures and applicable 

statutes and regulations are complied with. 

All directors have access to the advice and services of 

the company secretary. 

Dealing in securities

There is a formal policy prohibiting the directors and 

senior employees in dealing in the company’s 

securities during sensitive periods and during the 

period between the financial year end and half year 

end and the announcement of the final and interim 

results respectively. 

All dealings by directors require prior approval by the 

Chairman of the board or failing him the company 

secretary and are disclosed in terms of the JSE 

Securities Exchange South Africa Listing 

Requirements.

Ethics

The City Lodge group is dedicated to maintaining its 

growth record and achieving acceptable investment 

returns. In its pursuit of excellence the group is 

bound to its values and principles and we therefore 

believe that we must act, at all times, in a manner 

consistent with them. All employees are expected to 

demonstrate the character that is required to live the 

standards as specified in this code and the code of 

employment. This character is evident in the primary 

values held by the group and includes the 

requirement to be:

●  trustworthy,

●  respectful of others,

●  responsible and accountable for ones actions, 

behaviour and decisions,

●  fair, consistent and impartial,

●  caring, and

●  a good citizen.

Employees are expected to apply these 

requirements to their everyday decisions and 

behaviour and therefore to execute their duties 

with complete integrity. The application of this 

code, together with the company’s employment 

code, regulates the behaviour of all employees 

ensuring that the highest ethical standards are 

maintained and that all business practices are 

conducted in a manner, which in all reasonable 

circumstances, is beyond reproach. 

All issues with regards to ethical behaviour and 

business practices are monitored on an ongoing basis 

by the executive committee and through this 

committee, by the board. This monitoring system has 

been augmented by a 24 hour, outsourced alert line 

for the reporting of unethical or risky behaviour. In 

addition, all staff are currently undergoing training 

on business abuse prevention to create awareness 

with regards to the prevention of unethical 

behaviour. 

During the period under review no incident or act 

has come to the attention of the board to indicate 

that any material breach has occurred. 
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2. ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY:

Introduction 

City Lodge Hotels Limited is considered to be a 

medium impact company in terms of the SRI Index 

classification. The group operates exclusively in 

urban/metropolitan areas and therefore does not 

require the introduction of infrastructure into, or the 

development of, previously undeveloped areas. 

Responsible tourism

Having identified the challenges facing it in terms of 

environmental sustainability, the group has 

formulated an environmental management policy in 

line with the document on Responsible Tourism, 

developed prior to the World Summit on Sustainable 

Development, to be in line with the World Tourism 

Organisation’s code of ethics, broad ISO 14001 best 

practice and the International Hoteliers’ 

Environmental Initiative.

The group’s main impacts are in the areas of:

●  Energy conservation

●  Water conservation 

●  Waste water 

●  Air quality and pollution emissions and 

non-smoking areas

●  Recycling

Energy conservation 

The majority of the group’s energy consumption is 

divided between hot water boilers, air-conditioning 

plants and units and on-site laundry equipment. 

Mitigating strategies put in place to alleviate 

excessive consumption are as follows: 

●  Hot water boilers are set to heat water at night in 

off peak periods; this hot water is then stored for 

use the next day and distributed via heat pumps 

to the rooms. 

●  Air-conditioners are set to switch off automatically 

at four preset times every day. This curbs wasted 

energy consumption when air-conditioners are 

inadvertently left on by guests. 

●  On-site laundry equipment usage is carefully 

monitored and a programme of regular 

maintenance ensures that equipment is operating 

optimally. Machines are preset to operate on 

specific cycles and this ensures efficient usage 

of energy.

In addition, the replacement of all globes in hotels 

with the energy efficient variety has contributed to a 

reduction in energy consumption. All hotels and staff 

also participate in a programme which involves being 

aware of energy usage and taking active steps to 

reduce it such as switching off lights and televisions 

in vacated rooms, storerooms and staff areas. 

Energy consumption and the energy management 

systems in place are carefully monitored by 

management at each hotel and records are kept of 

consumption versus occupancies so that irregularities 

are easily identified and dealt with accordingly.

Water conservation

The majority of the group’s water is consumed in the 

hot water boilers and the on-site laundries. Whilst 

guest usage of water cannot be controlled, efforts are 

made to inform guests that water is a precious 

resource and should be used sparingly. Additionally, 

guests are given the option of retaining towels by 

placing them on the towel rails which contributes to 

a reduction in the amount of items to be laundered 

and consequently the water consumed.

Rooms are fitted with dual flush toilets to allow 

guests the opportunity to use less water and all taps  

are fitted with diffusers that restrict flow without 

detriment to the pressure.
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Water consumption is also carefully monitored with 

the recently completed Road Lodge Rustenburg 

having been fitted with special meters to measure 

the consumption of water in the boilers. This will 

allow for calculations to be made in terms of 

occupancy versus hot water consumption.

Waste water

Here the main concerns surround the addition of 

chemicals to the waste water that is discharged from 

the group’s hotels. To this end the group exclusively 

uses bio-degradable and eco-friendly chemicals in all 

cleaning and laundry operations. In addition all 

guest supplies in the form of soaps, shampoos and 

foam bath liquids are also bio-degradable.

All hotels are fitted with grease traps to ensure that 

kitchen and food greases are removed from waste 

water before it enters municipal systems.

Air quality and pollution

Although the only emissions are those created by 

laundry and kitchen extraction, these emissions are 

filtered and monitored on an ongoing basis with 

regular maintenance of the extraction and filtering 

systems. In addition, no aerosol dispensers are used 

in the dispensing or application of cleaning materials 

and air fresheners.

In compliance with legislation, the group has 

ensured that all public areas in its hotels are smoke-

free areas with at least 30% of rooms in all hotels 

being smoke-free and certain accommodation floors 

also declared completely smoke-free.

Recycling

The majority of the group’s hotels are involved in 

recycling projects in respect of paper and/or glass 

and/or aluminium cans. Organisations/companies 

that are engaged in this respect include, amongst 

others, SAPPI, Mondi, Enviroglass, Collect-a-Can and 

The Soul Foundation.

In addition to constant monitoring by operations 

personnel, a number of the company’s hotels have 

entered this year’s Imvelo Awards for the first time. 

The group hopes to use the awards and the criteria 

upon which they are based, as a benchmark for its 

environmental sustainability efforts. 

3. SOCIAL SUSTAINABILITY:

Introduction

Social sustainability concerns a broad range of issues 

that affect the well being of the group’s stakeholders 

including guests, suppliers, employees, shareholders 

and the greater community. Attention paid to these 

issues in the form of policy creation and the 

implementation and monitoring thereof, is 

congruent with the group’s efforts to ensure that it is 

a sustainable and socially responsible company.

Corporate Social Investment (CSI)

The City Lodge – Ubuntu Ba Bantu – Social 

Responsibility Programme 

Efforts this year have been focused on identifying a 

suitable partner/partners for facilitating the group’s 

CSI spend. Traditionally the Business Trust has been 

the main beneficiary, whilst other smaller initiatives 

were more regionally based and dealt with on an ad- 

hoc basis. This year has however seen the 

dissolution, for the time being, of the Business Trust 

which has necessitated the search for a suitable 

anchor partner/beneficiary. 

It is the group’s intention to spend some 0,7% of 

operating profit annually on social investment.

Aims and objectives

●  To identify sustainable projects and initiatives that 

underpin City Lodge’s own vision.
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–  participation in career days,

–  assistance with screening of students for enrolment 

at tertiary education institutions,

–  the provision of learning opportunities for the 

mentally disabled.

EMPOWERMENT AND TRANSFORMATION 

BEE committee

The board has established a committee on black 

economic empowerment in order to consider 

questions surrounding broad based black economic 

empowerment as envisaged by legislation and the 

Department of Trade and Industry. 

BEE procurement 

City Lodge Hotels recognises that the procurement of 

goods and services from black-owned and 

To support the communities in which they operate, each hotel selects charities in its area of operation. 

Beneficiaries of cash or other donations this year have included:

Community Chest

– Gauteng

– Western Cape

– KwaZulu-Natal

Operation Hunger

SA Golf Development

Jeppe Foundation

Abraham Kriel Children’s Home

SA Guide Dogs

Reach for a Dream

SA Disabled Golf

Meals on Wheels

Don Mattera School

Nazareth House

Pretoria Child Welfare

SOS Children’s Village Cerebral

Palsy Fund

Rondebosch Trauma Centre

The Robin Trust

The Haven Night Shelter

St John’s Ambulance

St Luke’s Hospice

Epilepsy South Africa

The Heart Foundation

The Sea Rescue Institute

CANSA

SA Red Cross

TAFTA

Highway Hospice Association

Nomad Bowls

Little Eden

SA Abused Children’s Fund

The Manger – Care Centre

Siyakhula Children’s Home

Starfish Foundation

Knights of De Gama

Pholoho School – Bloemfontein

Salvation Army

Boy’s Town

Bible Society of South Africa

Rotary

Lions

Cluny Farm

SPCA

Jerusalem Ministries

Edenhaven

Wayside Shelters

Grassroots Educare

Save a Child

●  To form relationships with NGO’s, associations and 

other stakeholders that will assist the group’s 

social responsibility endeavours.

●  To creatively provide assistance, in a variety of 

manners and means, towards the upliftment of 

the communities within which we operate.

●  To focus on education, the youth, tourism 

initiatives for the previously disadvantaged, sport 

development and social welfare. 

Assistance provided this year has included:

– mentoring the Soweto Accommodation Association,

–  donations in cash and kind to various institutions 

and organisations nationwide,

–  the hosting of numerous hospitality studies 

students for their experiential training,

–  lectures at hotel schools and schools,
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empowered enterprises is necessary in order to 

promote black economic empowerment and thereby 

grow the South African economy. 

In pursuit of these objectives, City Lodge Hotels 

recognises the historical disparity of previously 

disadvantaged communities, in particular, that of 

black women and the disabled and will therefore 

make procurement readily available to black 

suppliers whilst ensuring that all suppliers are 

treated in a fair manner and within the framework 

of its procurement policy.

In order to assist black suppliers to participate 

meaningfully in the economy the group will, on the 

basis of merit (quality, suitability and price), ensure 

that a percentage of its procurement needs are 

sourced from suppliers deemed to be BEE suppliers. 

While the company has reached levels of up to 30% 

BEE procurement on certain projects, it has still to 

set an overall target which will be guided by the 

scorecard produced for the industry through a 

process currently under way. Policy and systems have 

been devised and implemented to ensure that 

consideration is given to the BEE component of 

procurement throughout the company.

Industry charter and scorecard

Although the Tourism Industry has had an 

empowerment charter in place for some years, 

specific industry-wide targets have not been set. The 

process is now underway under the guidance of the 

Departments of Environmental Affairs and Tourism 

and the Department of Trade and Industry. The 

company and the hospitality sector in general are 

represented in the process by City Lodge’s Chief 

Executive, Clifford Ross. It is hoped that the process 

will result in an achievable and realistic baseline 

scorecard that will further guide the company and 

provide benchmarks against which it can measure its 

transformation and empowerment efforts.

Group employment equity plan 2003 – 2006

Occupational category

Planned targets 2006 Achieved 2004

White DesignatedA % White DesignatedA %

Legislators/Senior Officials and Managers 129  72  36 126  61 33

Professionals   3   1  25   2   2 50

Clerks 113  125  53 110 134 55

Service and sales workers   3 105  97   2 111 98

Craft and related trade workers   1  23 96   1  26 96

Elementary occupations   2 286 99   2 250 99

A Designated includes Africans, Coloureds, Indians and Disabled 
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Empowerdex

The group has engaged Empowerdex to audit and 

assess its transformation and empowerment activities 

to date. This will provide the opportunity to 

understand which shortcomings need to be 

addressed and where current achievements meet the 

requirements of a “good contributor” to broad-based 

black economic empowerment.

Employment equity

The group’s second employment equity plan has 

been submitted to the Department of Labour and 

further extends the targets with a view to ensuring 

eventual demographic representation at all levels in 

the company. The Employment Equity Consultative 

Committee meets bi-annually to assess progress 

towards the achievement of quantitative goals as 

well as to consider the qualitative elements that may 

influence the aforesaid achievements. 

The committee is representative of all individuals in 

the company it is chaired by the Chief Executive 

and enjoys the participation of the representative 

trade union.

HUMAN CAPITAL 

Training and development

The group spends annually, on average, an amount 

of between 4% and 5% of its total payroll cost on 

training and development. This allotment ensures 

that the group can continually pursue excellence by 

constantly upskilling its staff.

The City Lodge Hotels Skills Development Committee 

meets several times annually to determine what 

development is taking place, what skills development 

needs are present and how the provision of these 

skills can support the company’s equity targets. The 

committee has been given the capacity to deal with 

skills development issues through the structuring of 

several capacity building workshops. Committee 

members are therefore knowledgeable both with 

regards to legislation surrounding skills development 

and the administrative requirements of the national 

qualifications framework.

The committee has had the opportunity to verify and 

endorse the report on the achievements against the 

2003/4 Workplace Skills Plan, as well as participate in 

the drawing up of the 2004/5 Workplace Skills Plan. 

All grants available to the company for the previous 

period have now been paid out by THETA. The thrust 

of the group’s skills development strategy remains 

the provision of national qualifications at different 

levels and this year has seen an increase in the 

number of assessors available within the company. 

This will stand the group in good stead in ensuring 

that the provision of skills is at least maintained at 

present levels.

The City Lodge Academy continues to form the basis 

of the group’s efforts to develop a pool of previously 

disadvantaged management level employees. In an 

attempt to ensure a supply of likely candidates for 

the Academy, the group has embarked on a 

programme to identify unemployed individuals who 

are then contracted to complete a Learnership with 

the company. These individuals are assessed during 

the completion of their Learnerships and are then 

able to apply for acceptance to the Academy.

The City Lodge Hotels Human Resources Director is 

involved in skills development at an industry level 

through representation on the Hospitality Chamber 

of THETA.

Remuneration, benefits and incentives

The group’s remuneration policy allows for the 

attraction and retention of talent. In addition to 
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market related salaries, employees at all levels 

throughout the group enjoy benefits such as 

retirement funding, medical aid, annual bonuses and 

a loan scheme for assistance with the education of 

employee’s dependants. Long service awards are also 

presented at 5, 10 and 25 year anniversaries.

Top, senior and middle management employees are 

entitled to participate in a performance and 

appraisal linked bonus scheme (PAL) that measures 

both quantitative and qualitative achievements in 

terms of key performance areas. Top and senior 

management are furthermore entitled to participate 

in the Executive Share Option Scheme.

All other levels of staff are participants in the 

10th Anniversary employee share trust scheme, also 

known as Sizovuna or “Share Shares”. Participation in 

this scheme allows for an annual dividend payout to 

each participant.

Employee and Industrial Relations (IR)

The group approaches employee and IR issues with 

an inclusive view, preferring to invite participation 

on all substantive issues that may have an affect on 

the employment relationship or on employees’ 

conditions of work. 

The group currently recognises and has relationship 

agreements with one trade union, SACCAWU which is 

representative of 31% of its employees. Recognition 

has been withdrawn from HARWUSA (in the Western 

Cape) whose levels of representation have fallen 

below those at which the company is required to 

negotiate with them. 

The group has adopted a programme called “High 

Performance People” as the model for its Employee 

Relations and courses are held periodically for 

supervisors and management. This programme will 

also be made available to shop stewards to ensure 

complete understanding of the company’s policies 

and procedures. 

Health and Safety

Although the group’s properties do not represent 

dangerous working environments, all necessary 

precautions and measures are taken to ensure the 

safety of its employees. Health and Safety training, in 

respect of fire prevention/fighting as well as basic 

first aid, is mandatory for all staff and competency 

gained in this regard is recognised as prior learning 

in respect of generic health and safety units within 

various National Qualifications available to staff. 

The group has taken further steps to formalise 

structures and responsibilities around Health and 

Safety, including formal compliance with all issues as 

stated in the Act. With responsibilities now formally 

apportioned, further training will take place to 

ensure that the responsibilities assigned are clearly 

understood and implemented effectively. External 

audits are planned to ensure compliance with all 

relevant legislation.

City Lodge Hotels is currently engaged in a pilot 

project to ascertain levels of compliance with the 

HACCP (Hazard Analysis of Critical Control Points) 

legislation envisaged to be enacted soon. 

Implementation and formalisation of these 

standards will ensure that acceptable levels of 

hygiene and food safety are maintained at all the 

group’s properties.

HIV/AIDS 

The group’s policy on HIV/AIDS states that the group 

endeavours to create an environment in the 

workplace that is non-discriminatory towards, and 

supportive of, employees living with HIV/AIDS. 

The group has also recognised its social responsibility 

towards assisting in the eradication of the HIV/AIDS 

pandemic by informing all its employees of the 

dangers of HIV/AIDS and highlighting the behaviour/

practices which expose them, and their communities, 

to the danger of contracting HIV/AIDS.
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Responsible corporate citizenship and sustainability report (continued)

This commitment to HIV/AIDS awareness includes:

●  The display of the City Lodge Policy on HIV/AIDS 

and the availability of the code of good practice in 

each workplace in the group.

●  Availability and display of HIV/AIDS related 

material published by the Department of Health 

and Non-Governmental Organisations.

●  Copies of the abovementioned literature are 

distributed on a regular basis.

●  Training and refresher courses on the subject.

●  Easy and confidential access to counselling for all 

employees.

In conjunction with the employment equity 

committee and the representative trade union, 

the group will now attempt to ascertain what 

interventions may be required in future to ensure 

that the number of employees infected with 

HIV/AIDS is kept to a minimum and that efforts are 

made to assist those who are infected to enjoy 

quality of life, thereby allowing for their 

continued contribution.
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The directors of the company are responsible for 

the preparation, objectivity and integrity of the 

annual financial statements and other information 

contained in this annual report.

In order to fulfil this responsibility, the group 

maintains internal accounting and administrative 

control systems designed to provide reasonable 

assurance that assets are safeguarded and 

that transactions are executed and recorded in 

accordance with the group’s policies and procedures.

Nothing has come to the attention of the directors 

to indicate that a material breakdown in the controls 

within the group has occurred during the year.

The board has considered and recorded the facts 

and assumptions on which it relies to conclude that 

the business will continue as a going concern in the 

financial year ahead. The directors have no reason 

to believe that the group or any company within the 

group will not be a going concern in the year ahead, 

based on forecasts and available cash resources. The 

financial statements have accordingly been prepared 

on this basis.

The annual financial statements, prepared in 

accordance with South African Statements of 

Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, were 

examined by our auditors in conformity with 

statements of South African Auditing Standards.

The auditors have concurred with the directors’ 

statements on internal controls and going concern.

The financial statements for the year ended 30 June 

2004 set out on pages 37 to 63 and the responsible 

corporate citizenship and sustainability report on 

pages 22 to 33 were approved by the board of 

directors and are signed on its behalf by:

C Ross

Chief  executive

A C Widegger

Financial director

Sandton

22 September 2004

Directors’ approval of the financial statements

I, the undersigned, in my capacity as company 

secretary, hereby confirm to the best of my 

knowledge and belief, that for the financial year 

ended 30 June 2004, the company has lodged with 

the Registrar of Companies all returns required of a 

public company in terms of the Companies Act and 

that all such returns are true, correct and up to date.
A C Widegger

Company secretary

Certificate by company secretary
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To the members of City Lodge Hotels Limited

We have audited the annual financial statements of 

the company and of the group set out on pages 37 to 

63 for the year ended 30 June 2004. These financial 

statements are the responsibility of the company’s 

directors. Our responsibility is to express an opinion 

on these financial statements based on our audit.

Scope

We have conducted our audit in accordance with 

statements of South African Auditing Standards. 

Those standards require that we plan and perform 

the audit to obtain reasonable assurance that the 

financial statements are free of material 

misstatement. An audit includes:

●  examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting 

the amounts and disclosures in the financial 

statements,

●  assessing the accounting principles used and 

significant estimates made by management, and

●   evaluating the overall financial statement 

presentation.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis 

for our opinion.

Audit opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements fairly 

present, in all material respects, the financial 

position of the company and of the group at 30 June 

2004 and the results of their operations and cash 

flows for the year then ended in accordance with 

South African Statements of Generally Accepted 

Accounting Practice, and in the manner required by 

the Companies Act in South Africa.

KPMG Inc.

Registered Accountants and Auditors

Chartered Accountants (SA)

Johannesburg

22 September 2004

Report of the independent auditors
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Nature of business

The group owns and operates high quality, affordable 

hotels targeted at the business community and 

leisure traveller.

Financial results

Group profit before taxation for the year amounted to 

R153,6 million (2003 – R131,7 million) whilst 

consolidated net profit and headline earnings 

totalled R100,9 million (238,0 cents per share, fully 

diluted) compared with headline earnings of 

R87,5 million (207,0 cents per share, fully diluted) 

for the previous year.

The company’s interest in its subsidiaries’ net 

profit after taxation amounted to R2,4 million 

(2003 – R2,9 million).

Dividends

An interim dividend of 43,0 cents per share (2003 – 

37,0 cents) was declared on 13 February 2004, 

payable to ordinary shareholders registered on 

12 March 2004. A final dividend of 125,0 cents per 

share (2003 – 85,0 cents) was declared on 12 August 

2004, payable to ordinary shareholders registered on 

10 September 2004.

Share capital

 Number Share capital

 of shares R000

Ordinary shares of 

10 cents each in issue 

at 30 June 2003 41 962 253 4 196

Issued during 

the year:

– 22 August 2003 11 400 1

– 4 August 2003 8 800 1

– 10 October 2003 3 200 —

– 14 November 2003 1 800 —

– 19 November 2003 2 400 —

– 9 December 2003 41 200 4

– 18 December 2003 6 400 1

– 19 February 2004 1 800 —

– 1 March 2004 50 000 5

– 9 March 2004 8 000 1

– 12 May 2004 8 000 1

– 1 June 2004 2 000 —

– 9 June 2004 16 000 2

– 24 June 2004 2 000 —

Total at 30 June 2004 42 125 253 4 212

Directors’ report for the year ended 30 June 2004



38

City Lodge Hotels Limited 2004

Directors’ report for the year ended 30 June 2004 (continued)

There was no change in the authorised share capital 

of the group during the year under review.

At the forthcoming annual general meeting, members 

will be asked to consider an ordinary resolution 

placing a sufficient number of the unissued shares 

under the control of the directors for purposes of the 

executive employee share incentive scheme.

The shares issued during the year were to participants 

in the executive employee share incentive scheme, at 

prices of between R7,20 and R15,50 per share and of 

which 90 000 were to directors.

City Lodge executive employee share 

incentive scheme

Movements in options granted over shares in the 

company in terms of the executive employee share 

incentive scheme during the year are summarised 

as follows:

Total options at 30 June 2003 808 000

Options granted 203 000

Options exercised (163 000)

Options cancelled (15 200)

Total options at 30 June 2004 832 800

Options are granted at the ruling price on the JSE 

Securities Exchange South Africa on the date of 

granting those options. The options are exercisable to 

the extent of 20% on the expiry of two years from the 

date of grant, a further 20% on the expiry of years 

three and four and the remaining 40% on the expiry 

of year five. In terms of the deed governing the scheme, a 

maximum of 5% of the issued ordinary shares may be 

utilised for purposes of the scheme. Details of options 

held by directors are included in note 11.

Had the company elected to early adopt IFRS2-Share 

based payments, an amount of R343 000 would have 

been expensed in the current year.

The City Lodge 10th Anniversary Employees’ 

Share Scheme

At a general meeting of shareholders on 

18 December 1995, a share scheme was created 

for all employees other than those employees who 

participate in the City Lodge executive employee 

share incentive scheme. The company issued 

1 000 000 new ordinary shares to the trust which 

was funded by means of an interest free loan 

from the company for an amount of R34 million. 

A distribution of 30 shares per eligible employee, 

totalling 15 420 shares, was made at the end of the 

first year. The directors resolved at 30 June 1999 to 

write down the loan to R7,9 million, being the 

underlying value of the shares held by the trust 

as security against the loan as at that date. As a 

result of the adoption of AC133 – Financial 

Instruments: recognition and measurement, the 

carrying value of the loan is currently stated at 

R5,9 million.

Subsidiaries and joint ventures

Details relating to investments in subsidiaries and 

joint ventures appear on pages 50, 51 and 58.

Directorate and secretary

The directors in office during the year under review 

were: H R Enderle (Chairman), D C Coutts-Trotter, 

D A Hawton, F W J Kilbourn, I N Matthews, 

C Ross (Chief executive), K I M Shongwe and 

A C Widegger (Financial director and company 

secretary).

In terms of the articles of association, 

Messrs D C Coutts-Trotter, C Ross and A C Widegger 

retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting 

but are eligible and available for re-election.
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The financial statements are prepared on the 

historical cost basis and incorporate the following 

principal accounting policies which are consistent 

in all material respects with those of the 

previous year.

Statement of compliance

The financial statements are prepared in 

accordance with South African Statements of 

Generally Accepted Accounting Practice and the 

requirements of the Companies Act in South Africa.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the 

financial statements of the company and its 

subsidiaries. The results of subsidiaries are 

included from their effective dates of acquisition. 

Goodwill, which includes the excess of the cost of 

shares in subsidiaries over the amount of their net 

assets, fairly valued at the effective dates of 

acquisition, is carried at cost less accumulated 

amortisation. Goodwill is amortised on a straight-

line basis over its estimated useful life.

Joint ventures

Joint ventures are those enterprises over which the 

group exercises joint control in terms of a 

contractual agreement. Investments in joint 

ventures are accounted for using the equity 

method. The group’s share of post-acquisition 

earnings of joint ventures is included in earnings 

attributable to ordinary shareholders from their 

effective dates of acquisition.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Freehold land is stated at cost. Freehold and 

leasehold buildings are stated at cost and 

depreciated over periods of up to fifty years as 

deemed appropriate to reduce book values to 

estimated residual values over their useful lives.

Substantial improvements to buildings are 

capitalised, whilst maintenance and repair costs are 

expensed as they occur.

Borrowing costs incurred on funds raised to purchase 

freehold property and to erect hotel buildings are 

capitalised up to the date that the hotel is 

substantially complete.

Purchased furniture and equipment is depreciated 

over periods of between five and ten years as are 

deemed appropriate to reduce book values to 

estimated residual values over their useful lives. The 

initial purchases of crockery, cutlery and linen are 

capitalised and are not depreciated. Subsequent 

replace ments are written-off in the year in which 

they are purchased.

Leased assets

Operating lease payments are charged against 

income as they are incurred.

Intangible assets

Purchased trademarks are amortised over periods of 

up to twenty years.

Internally developed trademarks are not valued. 

Expenditure to develop and maintain such 

trademarks is charged in full against income.

Accounting policies



41

City Lodge Hotels Limited 2004

Impairment

The carrying amounts of the group’s assets are 

reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine 

whether there is any indication of impairment. If 

there is any indication that an asset may be 

impaired, its recoverable amount is estimated. The 

recoverable amount is the higher of its net selling 

price and its value in use. For intangible assets that 

are not yet available for use, or goodwill or 

intangible assets amortised over a period exceeding 

twenty years, the recoverable amount is estimated at 

each balance sheet date.

In assessing value in use, the expected future cash 

flows from the asset are discounted to their present 

value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects 

current market assessments of the time value of 

money and the risks specific to the asset. An 

impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying 

amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.

Pre-opening expenses

Pre-opening expenses of new hotels are charged 

directly against income as incurred.

Inventory

Inventory is valued at the lower of cost, on a first-in, 

first-out basis, and net realisable value.

Taxation

Current taxation comprises taxation payable 

calculated on the basis of the expected taxable 

income for the year, using the taxation rates enacted 

at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment of 

taxation payable for previous years.

Deferred taxation is provided using the balance 

sheet liability method, based on temporary 

differences. Temporary differences are differences 

between the carrying amounts of assets and 

liabilities for financial reporting purposes and 

their tax base. The amount of deferred taxation 

provided is based on the expected manner of 

realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of 

assets and liabilities using taxation rates enacted 

at the balance sheet date. Deferred taxation is 

charged to the income statement except to the 

extent that it relates to a transaction that is 

recognised directly in equity, or a business 

combination that is an acquisition. The effect on 

deferred taxation of any changes in taxation rates 

is recognised in the income statement, except to 

the extent that it relates to items previously 

charged or credited directly to equity.

A deferred taxation asset is recognised to the 

extent that it is probable that future taxable profits 

will be available against which the associated 

unused taxation losses and deductible temporary 

differences can be utilised. Deferred taxation 

assets are reduced to the extent that it is no longer 

probable that the related taxation benefit will be 

realised.

Accounting policies (continued)
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Financial instruments

Measurement

Financial instruments are initially measured at 

cost, which includes transaction costs. Subsequent 

to initial recognition, these instruments are 

measured as set out below:

Financial assets

Investments

Unlisted investments are shown at fair value.

Investments that meet the criteria for classification 

as loans originated by the enterprise are carried at 

amortised cost using the effective interest rate 

method.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables originated by the group 

are stated at cost less provision for doubtful debts.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are measured at fair value.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Borrowings are recognised initially at the proceeds 

received, net of transaction costs incurred. In 

subsequent periods, borrowings are stated at 

amortised cost using the effective interest method. In 

terms of the latter method, any difference between 

proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the 

redemption value is recognised in the income 

statement over the period of the borrowings.

Trade and other payables are recognised at cost.

Equity instruments are recorded at the proceeds 

received, net of direct issue costs.

Gains and losses on subsequent measurement

Gains and losses arising from a change in the fair 

value of financial instruments are included in net 

profit or loss in the period in which the change arises.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash 

and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, 

deposits held at call with banks and investments in 

money market instruments. In the balance sheet 

and cash flow statement, bank overdrafts are 

included in borrowings.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the group has a 

present legal or constructive obligation as a result of 

past events, for which it is probable that an outflow 

of resources will be required to settle the obligation, 

and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made.

Revenue

Revenue comprises revenue received from hotel 

accommodation, food and beverage sales, but 

excludes value added tax.

Employee benefits

Short term employee benefits

The cost of all short term employee benefits is 

recognised during the period in which the employee 

renders the related service.

Accounting policies (continued)
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The provision for employee entitlements to annual 

leave represents the amount which the group has a 

present obligation to pay as a result of employees’ 

services provided to the balance sheet date. The 

provisions have been calculated at undiscounted 

amounts based on current wage and salary rates.

Retirement benefits

The company and its subsidiaries contribute to a 

defined benefit and defined contribution plans. 

Contributions to defined contribution funds are 

charged against income as incurred.

The Projected Unit Credit Method is used to 

determine the present value of the defined benefit 

obligations and the related current service cost and, 

where applicable, past service cost.

Actuarial gains or losses in respect of defined benefit 

plans are recognised as income or expense if the net 

cumulative unrecognised actuarial gains and losses 

at the end of the previous reporting period exceeded 

the greater of:

–  10% of the present value of the defined benefit 

obligation at that date before deducting plan 

assets, and

–  10% of the fair value of any plan assets at that 

date.

The amount recognised is the excess determined 

above, divided by the expected average remaining 

working lives of the employees participating in 

that plan.

Past service costs are recognised as an expense on a 

straight line basis over the average period until the 

benefits become vested. To the extent that the 

benefits are already vested, past service costs are 

recognised immediately.

Equity compensation benefits

The group grants share options to certain employees 

under an employee share plan. No costs have been 

accounted for.

Accounting policies (continued)
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Assets

Non-current assets  481 240 426 953 474 839 422 027

Property, plant and equipment 1 439 857 385 839 366 098 313 297

Intangible assets 2 — 826 — 826

Interest in subsidiaries 3   71 380 71 380

Investments and loans 4 37 361 36 524 37 361 36 524

Deferred taxation 7 4 022 3 764 — —    

Current assets  48 986 56 565 46 022 53 835

Inventory 5 1 120 1 024 1 120 1 024

Trade receivables  16 540 15 100 16 540 15 100

Other receivables  5 094 6 884 8 476 10 219

Cash  26 232 33 557 19 886 27 492    

Total assets  530 226 483 518 520 861 475 862

Equity and liabilities

Capital and reserves  394 079 345 026 375 279 328 627

Share capital and premium 6 133 736 131 836 133 736 131 836

Accumulated profit  260 343 213 190 241 543 196 791    

Non-current liabilities  95 417 95 179 95 220 95 015

Deferred taxation 7 42 390 34 063 42 193 33 899

Borrowings 8 53 027 61 116 53 027 61 116    

Current liabilities  40 730 43 313 50 362 52 220

Provisions 9 3 865 3 704 3 858 3 697

Accounts payable and accruals  23 378 20 338 33 108 29 491

Borrowings 8 8 089 5 821 8 089 5 821

Taxation  5 398 13 450 5 307 13 211    

Total equity and liabilities   530 226 483 518 520 861 475 862

 GROUP COMPANY

  2004 2003 2004 2003
 Note R000 R000 R000 R000

Balance sheets at 30 June 2004
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Revenue  335 844 292 910 335 844 292 910

Administration and marketing costs  (25 837) (21  508) (22 000) (18 354)

Operating costs  (135 634) (118 891) (152 072) (134 871)

EBITDA 10 174 373 152 511 161 772 139 685

Depreciation and amortisation  (23 157) (22 351) (22 224) (21 418)

Operating profit  151 216 130 160 139 548 118 267

Net interest (paid)/received 12 (565) (1 948) 7 209 5 890

Income from joint venture 13 2 964 3 501 2 964 3 501

Profit before taxation  153 615 131 713 149 721 127 658

Taxation 14 (52 675) (44 261) (51 182) (43 105)

Net profit  100 940 87 452 98 539 84 553

Fully diluted earnings per share (cents) 15

  – headline and basic  238,0 207,0 

Earnings per share (cents) 15

  – headline and basic  240,1 208,5 

Dividends declared per ordinary 
share (cents) 16 168,0 122,0 

  – interim paid  43,0 37,0 

  – final declared  125,0 85,0    

Income statements for the year ended 30 June 2004

 GROUP COMPANY

  2004 2003 2004 2003
 Note R000 R000 R000 R000
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Cash generated by operations 20.1 180 299 149 529 168 228 134 530

Net interest (paid)/received 20.2 (1 402) (5 798) 6 372 2 040

Taxation paid 20.3 (52 658) (34 539) (50 792) (33 020)

Dividends paid 16 (53 787) (37 314) (53 787) (37 314)

Cash inflow from operating activities  72 452 71 878 70 021 66 236

Cash utilised in investing activities  (75 856) (56 094) (73 706) (51 743)

Investment to maintain operations 20.4 (23 765) (24 099) (23 765) (24 099)

Investment to expand operations 20.5 (52 091) (31 995) (49 941) (27 644)    

Cash effects of financing activities  (3 921) 411 (3 921) 411

Decrease in borrowings  (5 821) — (5 821) —

Increase in share capital  16 5 16 5

Increase in share premium  1 884 406 1 884 406    

Net cash (utilised)/retained  (7 325) 16 195 (7 606) 14 904

Cash at beginning of year  33 557 17 362 27 492 12 588

Cash at end of year  26 232 33 557 19 886 27 492

 GROUP COMPANY

  2004 2003 2004 2003
 Note R000 R000 R000 R000

Cash flow statements for the year ended 30 June 2004
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GROUP

Balance at 30 June 2002   131 425 163 052 294 477

Conversion of convertible debentures
into ordinary shares   411 — 411

Net profit for the year   — 87 452 87 452

Dividends paid  16 — (37 314) (37 314)

Balance at 30 June 2003   131 836 213 190 345 026

Issue of new ordinary shares   1 900 — 1 900

Net profit for the year   — 100 940 100 940

Dividends paid  16 — (53 787) (53 787)

Balance at 30 June 2004   133 736 260 343 394 079

COMPANY

Balance at 30 June 2002   131 425 149 552 280 977

Conversion of convertible debentures
into ordinary shares   411 — 411

Net profit for the year   — 84 553 84 553

Dividends paid  16 — (37 314) (37 314)

Balance at 30 June 2003   131 836 196 791 328 627

Issue of new ordinary shares   1 900 — 1 900

Net profit for the year   — 98 539 98 539

Dividends paid  16 — (53 787) (53 787)

Balance at 30 June 2004   133 736 241 543 375 279

Statements of changes in equity for the year ended 30 June 2004

  

   Share capital Accumulated 
  Note and premium profit Total

City Lodge Hotels Limited 2004
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1. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

At cost

Land and buildings  437 869 369 974 350 268 284 523

– freehold  347 850 283 039 260 249 197 588

– leasehold  90 019 86 935 90 019 86 935    

Buildings under construction  — 12 917 — 12 917

Furniture and equipment  150 419 134 026 149 513 133 121

  588 288 516 917 499 781 430 561

Accumulated depreciation

Land and buildings  46 458 39 349 32 616 26 440

– freehold  37 005 32 044 23 163 19 135

– leasehold  9 453 7 305 9 453 7 305    

Furniture and equipment  101 973 91 729 101 067 90 824

  148 431 131 078 133 683 117 264

Net book value

Land and buildings  391 411 330 625 317 652 258 083

– freehold  310 845 250 995 237 086 178 453

– leasehold  80 566 79 630 80 566 79 630    

Buildings under construction  — 12 917 — 12 917

Furniture and equipment  48 446 42 297 48 446 42 297

  439 857 385 839 366 098 313 297

 GROUP COMPANY

  2004 2003 2004 2003
  R000 R000 R000 R000

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2004
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1.  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

Movements for the year

Group – net book value

  Opening balance – 30 June 2002  307 135 43 973 351 108

  Additions  42 582 13 684 56 266

  Disposals  — (10) (10)

  Depreciation  (6 175) (15 350) (21 525)

  Opening balance – 30 June 2003  343 542 42 297 385 839

  Additions  54 978 21 892 76 870

  Disposals  — (521) (521)

  Depreciation  (7 109) (15 222) (22 331)

  391 411 48 446 439 857

Company – net book value

  Opening balance – 30 June 2002  238 011 43 973 281 984

  Additions  38 231 13 684 51 915

  Disposals  — (10) (10)

  Depreciation  (5 242) (15 350) (20 592)

  Opening balance – 30 June 2003  271 000 42 297 313 297

  Additions  52 828 21 892 74 720

  Disposals  — (521) (521)

  Depreciation  (6 176) (15 222) (21 398)

  317 652 48 446 366 098

A register of the land and buildings is available for 
inspection at the registered office of the company, a 
copy of which will be supplied to members of the 
public on request.

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2004 (continued)

  Land and Furniture and 
  buildings equipment Total
  R000 R000 R000
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2. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

At cost 8 266 8 266 8 266 8 266

Accumulated amortisation (8 266) (7 440) (8 266) (7 440)

Net book value — 826 — 826

3. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES Issued %
 share held
 capital 

 R 

Shares at cost less amounts written off

Budget Hotels (Pty) Ltd 100 100 6 400 6 400

City Lodge (Airport Property) (Pty) Ltd 3 350 100 4 4

City Lodge (Randburg) (Pty) Ltd 100 100 176 176

Courtyard Management Company (Pty) Ltd 100 100 — —

Property Lodging Investments (Pty) Ltd 100 100 2 000 2 000

   8 580 8 580

Long-term loan

Property Lodging Investments (Pty) Ltd   62 800 62 800

Interest in subsidiaries   71 380 71 380

Amounts included in receivables and payables

Amounts due by subsidiaries   4 859 4 758

Amounts due to subsidiaries   (9 967) (9 355)

The company also has an indirect, 100% shareholding
in City Lodge Holdings (Share Block) (Pty) Ltd and 
Twenty Third Floor Investments Seventeen (Pty) Ltd

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2004 (continued)

 GROUP COMPANY

  2004 2003 2004 2003
  R000 R000 R000 R000
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4. INVESTMENTS AND LOANS

City Lodge 10th Anniversary Employees’ Share Scheme 5 921 5 084 5 921 5 084

Investment in joint venture 31 440 31 440 31 440 31 440

Cost of unlisted shares and equity loans 8 734 8 734 8 734 8 734

Acquisition costs capitalised 108 108 108 108

Increase in investment since acquisition

– land and buildings 5 998 5 998 5 998 5 998

– loans receivable 16 600 16 600 16 600 16 600    

 37 361 36 524 37 361 36 524

The City Lodge 10th Anniversary Employees’ Share 
Scheme loan is secured by the pledge of 984 580 
(2003 – 984 580) shares having a market value of 
R25 352 935 (2003 – R18 017 814), is interest free and 
is repayable upon demand by the company at any 
time after the expiry of 20 years from the date of 
adoption of the scheme or in the event of the share 
price falling below R34,00 per share.

The loan amount has been restated to a current 
present value of R5,921 million (2003 – R5,084 
million). This increase was as a result of a notional 
credit to interest received in the current year 
of R837 000.

The investment in joint venture represents the 
acquisition of the shares and right of use of the assets of 
the Courtyard group of suite hotels with effect from 
1 April 1995. The directors’ valuation of the investment is 
R48 100 000 (2003 – R31 440 000). The loans advanced 
are unsecured, have no fixed terms of repayment and 
bore interest at 13,5% per annum (2003 – 13,5%).

5. INVENTORY

Food, liquor and beverages at cost 1 120 1 024 1 120 1 024

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2004 (continued)

 GROUP COMPANY

  2004 2003 2004 2003
  R000 R000 R000 R000
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6. SHARE CAPITAL AND PREMIUM

Share capital

Authorised

50 000 000 ordinary shares of 10 cents each 5 000 5 000 5 000 5 000

Issued

42 125 253 (2003 – 41 962 253) 
ordinary shares of 10 cents each 4 212 4 196 4 212 4 196

Share premium 129 524 127 640 129 524 127 640

Balance at beginning of year 127 640 127 234 127 640 127 234

Premium on issue of new ordinary shares 1 884 406 1 884 406    

 133 736 131 836 133 736 131 836

The unissued shares are under the control of the 
directors until the forthcoming annual general meeting.

7. DEFERRED TAXATION

Movement of deferred taxation assets

Balance at beginning of year 3 764 3 505

Current year temporary differences 258 259

Balance at end of year 4 022 3 764

Analysis of deferred taxation assets
Capital allowances 4 022 3 764

Movement of deferred taxation liabilities

Balance at beginning of year 34 063 32 258 33 899 32 128

Adoption of AC133 — (3 471) — (3 471)

Current year temporary differences 8 327 5 276 8 294 5 242

Balance at end of year 42 390 34 063 42 193 33 899

Analysis of deferred taxation liabilities

Capital allowances 44 883 38 152 44 686 37 988

Notional interest (785) (2 531) (785) (2 531)

Prepayments 282 343 282 343

Provisions (1 990) (1 901) (1 990) (1 901)

 42 390 34 063 42 193 33 899

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2004 (continued)

 GROUP COMPANY

  2004 2003 2004 2003
  R000 R000 R000 R000
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8. BORROWINGS
Non-current
33 500 000 redeemable debentures of R1 each  27 446 33 474 27 446 33 474
The unsecured variable rate debentures bear interest 
at the Eskom E170 rate plus 1,5% points per annum, 
adjustable on a six montly basis on 31 January and 
31 July each year. The Eskom E170 rate at 30 June 
2004 was 10,35%.
Repayments are made on 31 January and 31 July 
each year at an initial rate of 10% of capital escalated 
by 11% per annum. The 2005 instalment is 
R11,45 million.
The debentures are redeemable at par on 31 July 2012 
to the extent not already redeemed.

Long-term loan  13 860 13 145 13 860 13 145
The original capital amount of the loan is R8,5 million 
and the loan is secured by means of an irrevocable 
power of attorney in favour of the lender to register 
a first surety bond over certain immovable property 
should the net asset value of the group at any time 
fall below R100 million and is repayable over a 
20 year period in monthly instalments.
The monthly instalments in respect of the first year of 
the term are calculated by multiplying the original 
capital amount by 9,75% and in respect of each 
subsequent year by increasing the instalment of 
each preceding year by 10%. The 2005 instalment is 
R1,89 million. The final instalment is payable on 
31 October 2016.

Long-term loan  19 810 20 318 19 810 20 318
The original capital amount of the loan is 
R16,5 million, the loan is unsecured and bears 
interest at the Eskom E170 rate plus 1,5% points 
per annum, adjustable on a six monthly basis on 
31 March and 30 September each year. The Eskom 
E170 rate at 30 June 2004 was 10,35%.
Payments are made on 31 March and 30 September 
each year at an initial rate of 10% of capital 
escalating by 11% per annum. The 2005 instalment is 
R3,34 million.
The loan is repayable on 30 September 2017 to the 
extent not already paid.

 61 116 66 937 61 116 66 937
Estimated short-term portion (8 089) (5 821) (8 089) (5 821)

 53 027 61 116 53 027 61 116

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2004 (continued)

 GROUP COMPANY

  2004 2003 2004 2003
  R000 R000 R000 R000



54

City Lodge Hotels Limited 2004

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2004 (continued)

 GROUP COMPANY

  2004 2003 2004 2003
  R000 R000 R000 R000

9. PROVISIONS
Thirteenth cheque

Balance at beginning of year  1 500 1 347 1 493 1 340

Utilised during the year  (3 061) (2 735) (3 049) (2 724)

Raised during the year  3 245 2 888 3 233 2 877

Balance at end of year  1 684 1 500 1 677 1 493

Management bonus

Balance at beginning of year  2 204 675 2 204 675

Utilised during the year  (2 060) (882) (2 060) (882)

Raised during the year  2 037 2 411 2 037 2 411

Balance at end of year  2 181 2 204 2 181 2 204

Total provisions  3 865 3 704 3 858 3 697

The utilisation of these provisions is expected to occur 
within a year.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2004 (continued)

 GROUP COMPANY

  2004 2003 2004 2003
  R000 R000 R000 R000

10. EBITDA

EBITDA is arrived at after charging

Auditors’ remuneration  662 568 617 527

Audit fees  424 353 379 312

Fees for other services  238 215 238 215    

Directors’ emoluments    4 224 4 787

Fees paid to non-executive directors (Note 11)    728 269

Executive directors (Note 11)    3 496 4 518    

Operating lease rentals

– land  1 852 1 524 4 396 3 836

– hotel buildings  264 264 9 434 9 372

– office buildings  1 359 1 235 1 359 1 235

Pre-opening expenses   1 089 314 1 089 314

and after crediting

Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment 493 162 493 162

Rent received  1 311 1 216 1 311 1 234



56

City Lodge Hotels Limited 2004

11.  DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Executive directors

2004

C Ross  944 713 232 76 1 965 625 2 590

A C Widegger  744 554 174 59 1 531 568 2 099

      3 496 1 193 4 689

2003

H R Enderle  256 — 244 21 521 — 521

C Ross  742 503 100 59 1 404 — 1 404

A J Balabanoff  427 166 65 34 692 — 692

G D Bisset  427 166 135 34 762 — 762

A C Widegger  620 397 72 50 1 139 — 1 139

      4 518 — 4 518

Non-executive directors

 Fees R000

     2004 2003

D C Coutts-Trotter     85 50

W M Dickson     — 30

H R Enderle     300 —

D A Hawton     68 37

F W J Kilbourn     100 57

I N Matthews     125 65

K I M Shongwe     50 30

     728 269

No other payments were made 
to directors.

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2004 (continued)

    Fringe Pension Total Gain on 
   Perfor- benefits fund annual exercise Total
  Basic mance  and contri- remune- of share emolu-
 R000 salary bonus allowances butions ration options ments
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2004 (continued)

   Holding at  Holding at  Number
 Date of Exercise 30 June   30 June Lapse vesting at
  grant price (R) 2003 Exercised 2004 date 30 June 2004

11. DIRECTORS’ 
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

Directors’ share options
C Ross 01/08/1994 15,50 50 000 (50 000) — — —
 02/08/1999 8,75 26 000 — 26 000 02/08/2009 26 000
 01/08/2000 7,30 26 000 — 26 000 01/08/2010 10 400
 01/08/2001 8,41 26 000 — 26 000 01/08/2011 5 200
 01/08/2002 11,75 26 000 — 26 000 01/08/2012 —
 01/08/2003 18,50 — — 26 000 01/08/2013 —

   154 000  130 000

A C Widegger 03/01/1994 9,50 40 000 (40 000) — — —
 01/08/1994 15,50 25 000 — 25 000 31/08/2004 25 000
 04/01/1999 6,50 10 000 — 10 000 04/01/2009 10 000
 02/08/1999 8,75 5 000 — 5 000 02/08/2009 3 000
 03/01/2000 9,30 10 000 — 10 000 03/01/2010 6 000
 01/08/2000 7,30 5 000 — 5 000 02/08/2010 2 000
 03/01/2001 7,75 10 000 — 10 000 03/01/2011 4 000
 01/08/2001 8,41 5 000 — 5 000 01/08/2011 1 000
 01/01/2002 8,60 10 000 — 10 000 01/01/2012 2 000
 01/08/2002 11,75 5 000 — 5 000 01/08/2012 —
 01/01/2003 16,80 10 000 — 10 000 01/01/2013 —
 01/08/2003 18,50 — — 5 000 01/08/2013 —

   135 000  100 000 

 GROUP COMPANY

  2004 2003 2004 2003
  R000 R000 R000 R000

12. NET INTEREST (PAID)/RECEIVED

Gross interest paid (9 288) (10 536) (9 288) (10 471)

Interest capitalised 1 276 761 1 276 761

 (8 012) (9 775) (8 012) (9 710)

Interest received 7 447 7 827 15 221 15 600

 (565) (1 948) 7 209 5 890

Interest  is capitalised at 11,5% (2003 – 12%) per annum.

Notional interest is included in the above.
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13. INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURE
The group has a 50% interest in the Courtyard Share Block Companies as detailed 
below. The hotel operations are conducted in a rental pool. The group’s participation 
in the rental pools at the Courtyards Bruma Lake, Valkenberg and Arcadia, is 50%. 
The participation in the rental pools at the Courtyards Rosebank and Sandton is 
32,42% and 26,03% respectively.
Management fees are paid by the respective rental pools to Courtyard Management 
Company (Pty) Ltd which is a wholly owned subsidiary.
The group’s proportionate share of the assets and liabilities and the results of the 
operations have been equity accounted.
The group’s proportionate share of the results of the operations of the joint venture 
is as follows:

Revenue    18 867 18 212

Operating profit    6 025 6 604
Interest paid    (3 061) (3 103)

Net profit    2 964 3 501
Distributed    (2 964) (3 501)

Accumulated profit    — —

The group’s proportionate share of assets and liabilities of the joint venture is as follows:
Operating assets    32 608 32 692
Current assets    10 163 9 219

Total assets    42 771 41 911

Long-term liabilities    29 061 29 061
Current liabilities    1 246 1 205

Total liabilities    30 307 30 266

The group’s proportionate share of the cash flows of the joint venture is as follows:
Cash retained from operating activities    98 106
Cash utilised in investing activities    (20) (38)
Cash effects of financing activities    839 196

Net cash retained    917 264

  GROUP

    2004 2003
    R000 R000
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13. INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURE (continued)
The group’s shareholding in the joint venture 
companies is as follows:
  Issued 
  share capital % held
  R

Gallic Courtyard (Arcadia) Share Block (Pty) Ltd  1 518 50
Gallic Courtyard (Bruma Lake) Share Block (Pty) Ltd 2 584 50
Gallic Courtyard (Rosebank) Share Block Ltd  2 456 50
Gallic Courtyard (Sandown) Share Block Ltd  1 584 50
Gallic Courtyard (Valkenberg) Share Block (Pty) Ltd  2 690 50

 GROUP COMPANY

  2004 2003 2004 2003
  R000 R000 R000 R000

14. TAXATION
South African normal taxation

Current  37 883 34 580 36 165 33 199

Deferred  8 069 5 017 8 294 5 242

Secondary tax on companies  6 723 4 664 6 723 4 664

  52 675 44 261 51 182 43 105

Reconciliation of  taxation rate  % % % %

Standard rate  30,0 30,0 30,0 30,0

Adjusted for:

– (exempt income)/disallowable expenditure  (0,1) 0,1 (0,3) 0,1

– secondary tax on companies  4,4 3,5 4,5 3,7

Effective rate of taxation  34,3 33,6 34,2 33,8

15. EARNINGS PER SHARE

Determination of  headline earnings

Net profit equates to headline earnings
and therefore no reconciliation is required

Headline earnings  100 940 87 452

Number of  shares for EPS calculations (000)

Undiluted  42 033 41 939

– share options  377 314

Fully diluted  42 410 42 253
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16. DIVIDENDS

Number 29 of 85,0 cents (2002 – 52,0 cents) declared 
on 14 August 2003 and paid on 22 September 2003  35 685 21 793 35 685 21 793

Number 30 of 43,0 cents (2003 – 37,0 cents) declared
on 13 February 2004 and paid on 23 March 2004  18 102 15 521 18 102 15 521

  53 787 37 314 53 787 37 314

On 12 August 2004, dividend number 31 of 125 cents 
per share in respect of the year ended 30 June 2004
was declared totalling R52 656 566 payable on 
20 September 2004. The related STC payable at 12,5% 
amounts to R6 582 071. These financial statements do 
not reflect this dividend payable or the related STC.

17. COMMITMENTS

Authorised

– contracted  — 37 000 — 37 000

– not contracted  25 300 38 000 25 300 38 000

  25 300 75 000 25 300 75 000

Future capital expenditure will be financed out of 
funds generated from operations and external 
borrowings and is expected to be spent during the 
year ending 30 June 2005.

The company is party to various operating leases of 
periods between 20 and 99 years in respect of land on 
which group hotels have been constructed.

Reconciliation of minimum lease payments in respect 
of land leases

– not later than one year  2 067 1 666 2 067 1 666

– between one and five years  10 258 8 891 10 258 8 891

– later than five years  235 617 188 071 235 617 188 071

 GROUP COMPANY

  2004 2003 2004 2003
  R000 R000 R000 R000
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18. RETIREMENT BENEFIT INFORMATION 
The group provides retirement benefits for 19% of the group’s permanent employees 
through a defined benefit pension scheme that is subject to the Pension Funds Act, 
1956 as amended. This fund was closed to new membership on 28 February 2004 
and a new defined contribution fund was established. Company contributions to 
this new fund are fixed at a rate of 10,5% of pensionable salaries and 6% of the 
group’s permanent employees are members. Employees who are not members of 
the above funds are members of the appropriate industry fund.
A statutory actuarial valuation of the defined benefit fund is undertaken every 
three years. At 31 July 2001, the effective date of the most recent statutory actuarial 
valuation, the retirement benefit fund was found to have a deficit of R90 000. The 
next statutory actuarial valuation will be performed as at 1 August 2004. 
The current estimate in terms of AC116, as at 30 June 2004, as shown below, 
indicates that the fund has a deficit of R4,1 million. Any deficit arising following 
the statutory valuation will be funded by means of an increase in the company 
contributions based on actuarial advice over a three year period.
Current estimated employee benefit obligation:
Present value of obligation   (20 088) (17 706)
Fair value of plan assets   16 031 16 004

   (4 057) (1 702)
Unrecognised actuarial losses   5 228 2 795

Deferred losses   1 171 1 093

Current service cost   (3 119) (2 749)
Interest on obligation   (1 964) (1 714)
Expected return on plan assets   1 794 1 611
Net actuarial losses recognised in year   (35) (15)

   (3 324) (2 867)

Movement in net asset:

Opening net asset   1 093 696
Expense   (3 324) (2 867)
Contributions paid   3 402 3 264

Closing net asset   1 171 1 093

Principal actuarial assumptions at the balance sheet date:
Discount rate   12% 12%
Expected return on plan assets   12% 12%
Future salary increases   10% 10%
Future pension increases   6% 6%
The closing net asset of R1,2 million has not been brought to account on the basis 
of its relative immateriality and in light of the estimated deficit as at 30 June 2004.
Medical Aid
Certain of the group’s employees belong to the Discovery Health Medical Scheme.
There are no obligations for post-retirement medical aid contributions. 

  GROUP

    2004 2003
    R000 R000



Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2004 (continued)

62

City Lodge Hotels Limited 2004

19. BORROWING POWERS

The borrowings of the company are not 
limited by its articles of association.

20. NOTES TO THE CASH FLOW STATEMENTS

20.1 Cash generated by operations

Profit before taxation  153 615 131 713 149 721 127 658

Adjusted for:

–  depreciation on property, plant 
and equipment  22 331 21 525 21 398 20 592

– net interest paid/(received) (Note 20.2)  565 1 948 (7 209) (5 890)

– profit on disposal of operating assets  (493) (162) (493) (162)

– trademark amortised  826 826 826 826

Operating profit before working capital changes  176 844 155 850 164 243 143 024

Increase in inventory  (96) (201) (96) (201)

Increase/(decrease) in receivables  350 (2 168) 303 (4 945)

Increase/(decrease) in payables and accruals  3 201 (3 952) 3 778 (3 348)

  180 299 149 529 168 228 134 530

20.2 Net interest (paid)/received

Net interest per income statement  (565) (1 948) 7 209 5 890

AC133 notional interest earned  (837) (3 850) (837) (3 850)

  (1 402) (5 798) 6 372 2 040

20.3 Taxation paid

Balance unpaid at beginning of year  (13 450) (8 745) (13 211) (8 368)

Taxation payable per income statements  (44 606) (39 244) (42 888) (37 863)

Balance unpaid at end of year  5 398 13 450 5 307 13 211

  (52 658) (34 539) (50 792) (33 020)

 GROUP COMPANY

  2004 2003 2004 2003
  R000 R000 R000 R000
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20.  NOTES TO THE CASH FLOW STATEMENTS (continued)

20.4 Investment to maintain operations

Additions to operating assets

– land and buildings  (13 132) (13 477) (13 132) (13 477)

– furniture and equipment  (11 647) (10 794) (11 647) (10 794)

Proceeds on disposal of operating assets  1 014 172 1 014 172

  (23 765) (24 099) (23 765) (24 099)

20.5 Investment to expand operations

Additions to operating assets

– land and buildings  (41 846) (29 105) (39 696) (24 754)

– furniture and equipment  (10 245) (2 890) (10 245) (2 890)

  (52 091) (31 995) (49 941) (27 644)

21. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Currency risk – The group is not exposed to currency risk.

Interest rate risk – The group generally adopts a policy of ensuring that its exposure to changes in interest 
rates is limited by either fixing the rate or by linking the rate to the average medium term, risk-free rate over 
the period of the respective loan.

Credit risk – Management has a credit policy in place and the exposure to credit risk is monitored on an ongoing 
basis. Credit evaluations are performed on all travel agents or customers requiring credit. Reputable financial 
institutions are used for investing and cash handling purposes. There were no significant concentrations 
of credit risk.

Fair values – The fair values of all financial instruments are materially the same as the carrying values reflected in 
the balance sheet.

22. RELATED PARTIES

Identity of related parties

Sun International Limited (“Sun International”) has a significant interest in City Lodge Hotels Limited.

The subsidiaries of the City Lodge group are identified in note 3 and the joint ventures in note 13.

The directors are listed on page 38.

Material related party transactions

During the year the group entered into arm’s length transactions with companies within the Sun International Group.

Mr H R Enderle is a director and 19% shareholder of Hotel Amenities Supplies (Pty) Ltd, which supplied 
approximately R2 million worth of guest consumables to the group during the year under review.

Details relating to directors’ emoluments are disclosed in note 11.

 GROUP COMPANY

  2004 2003 2004 2003
  R000 R000 R000 R000
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Turnover  335 844  292 910 
Paid to suppliers for 
materials and services  87 784  76 711 

Value added by operations  248 060  216 199 
Interest income  7 447  7 827 
Income from joint venture  2 964  3 501 
Pre-opening expenses  (1 089)  (314) 

Total wealth created  257 382 100 227 213 100

Distributed as follows:

Employees
Salaries, wages and all 
related benefits  66 376 26 58 346 26

Government
Income taxation 
(current and deferred)  45 952  39 597 
Secondary tax on companies  6 723  4 664 
Regional services levy  784  691 
Rates  5 438  4 337 

  58 897 23 49 289 21

Providers of capital
Dividends to ordinary 
shareholders  53 787  37 314 
Interest on borrowings and 
convertible debentures  8 012  9 775 

  61 799 24 47 089 21

Reinvested to maintain/
develop operations
Depreciation and amortisation  23 157  22 351 
Accumulated profit  47 153  50 138 

  70 310 27 72 489 32

Total wealth distributed  257 382 100 227 213 100

Total headcount 
(permanent and contract)  961  930 

 GROUP

  2004  2003
  R000 % R000 %

Value-added statement for the year ended 30 June 2004
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Shareholders’ analysis as at 30 June 2004

Shareholder spread

 No. of No. of 
 shareholders shareholders 
 in S.A. other than in S.A. Total shareholders

 Nominal  Nominal  Nominal
Shareholder type number Percentage number Percentage number Percentage

Public 2 966 42,30 6 3,88 2 971 46,18

Directors  – Non-public 8 12,82 — — 8 12,82

Other – Non-public 2 41,00 — — 3 41,00

Total 2 976 96,12 6 3,88 2 982 100,00

     Number  % of total
     of shares issued
Beneficial shareholders with holdings exceeding 1%    owned shares

Sun International Limited*     16 287 604 38,66

Enderle SA (Pty) Limited*     5 285 948 12,55

Old Mutual Group     1 367 001 3,25

Nedcor     1 114 094 2,64

City Lodge 10th Anniversary Employees Share Trust*    984 580 2,34

Oasis Asset Management     899 560 2,14

Gingko Trading CC     810 000 1,92

Public Investment Commissioner     751 474 1,78

Roberts, H     700 000 1,66

     28 200 261 66,94

* Non-public which in terms of  the JSE Listings Requirements includes inter alia, the directors of  the company, the trustees of  any 
employees’ share scheme and any person or entity that is interested in 10% or more of  a particular class of  securities.
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Notice is hereby given that the eighteenth annual 

general meeting of members of City Lodge Hotels 

Limited will be held at The Lodge, 38 Wierda Road 

West, Wierda Valley, Sandton on Wednesday, 

10 November 2004 at 14h00 for the following 

business:

1.  To receive and consider the financial statements 

for the year ended 30 June 2004.

2.  To elect directors who retire in accordance with 

the provisions of the company’s articles of 

association. The following directors, being 

eligible, offer themselves for re-election and their 

profiles appear on pages 12 and 13.

 2.1 Mr D C Coutts-Trotter

 2.2 Mr C Ross

 2.3 Mr A C Widegger

3.  To approve the annual fees payable to the 

non-executive directors with effect from the year 

beginning 1 July 2004 as follows:

 3.1 to the chairman of the board, R330 000;

 3.2 for their services as directors, R60 000 each;

 3.3  to the chairman of the audit committee, 

R50 000;

 3.4  to the other members of the audit 

committee, R25 000 each;

 3.5  to the chairman of the remuneration 

committee, R45 000;

 3.6  to the other members of the remuneration 

committee, R22 500 each;

 3.7  to the chairman of the risk committee, 

R35 000;

 3.8  to the other members of the risk 

committee, R17 500;

 3.9  to the chairman of the BEE committee, 

R25 000;

 3.10  to the other members of the BEE 

committee, R12 500.

4.  To consider and, if deemed fit, to pass, with or 

without modification, the following ordinary 

resolution:

  “RESOLVED THAT: the following amendments to 

the City Lodge Hotels Share Incentive Scheme 

executed on 23 September 1992 and which was 

adopted by the shareholders of the company in 

general meeting on the same day, be approved:

 1.  The deletion of the existing clause 1.2.21. 

and the substitution therefor of the following 

new clause 1.2.21:

   “1.2.21.  “purchase price” means the weighted 

average price of trades of shares of 

the company on the JSE during the 

10 (ten) trading days preceding the 

option date or the offer date or the 

date/s contemplated in clause 19.6, 

as the case may be;”

 2.  The deletion of the existing clause 1.2.27. 

relating to the definition of “scheme 

allocation” and the substitution therefor of 

the following new clause 1.2.27.:

   “1.2.27   “scheme allocation” means such 

number of ordinary shares in the 

issued share capital of the company 

from time to time as does not exceed 

7% (seven per cent) thereof;”.

 3.  The deletion of the last sentence of clause 

13.1.1 and the substitution of the following 

sentence in its place:

     “Such shares shall not exceed the scheme 

allocation.”

 4.  The deletion of clause 16.1.1 and the 

substitution therefor of the following 

new clause 16.1.1.:

Notice of annual general meeting
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   “16.1.1  No participant shall be entitled to 

accept an offer and/or exercise an 

option pursuant to this trust to the 

extent that following such acceptance or 

exercise, the number of scheme shares 

reserved for or held by such participant 

shall exceed, subject to any 

requirements of the JSE in this regard, 

such number of shares as constitutes at 

the time 1% (one per cent) of the entire 

issued share capital of the company.

  The purpose of the above amendments are 

essentially to increase the percentage of the 

issued share capital of the company available for 

allocation in terms of the share incentive scheme 

to 7% (seven per cent) and to provide that no 

one participant of such scheme shall be entitled 

to hold or have reserved for him more than 

1% (one per cent) of the issued share capital of 

the company.”

5.  To consider and if deemed fit, to pass, with or 

without modification, the following ordinary 

resolution:

  “RESOLVED THAT: sufficient ordinary shares in 

the authorised but unissued share capital of the 

company be and are hereby placed at the 

disposal and under the control of the directors, 

as are required for purposes of giving effect to 

the City Lodge Hotels Share Incentive Scheme 

(“the Share Incentive Scheme”), and that the 

directors be and are hereby authorised and 

empowered, subject to the provisions of the 

South African Companies Act, 1973, (Act 61 of 

1973), as amended, and the Listings 

Requirements of the JSE Securities Exchange 

South Africa to allot and issue such shares to 

qualifying employees of the company and its 

subsidiaries on and subject to, the terms of the 

Share Incentive Scheme.”

6.  To transact such other business as may be 

transacted at an annual general meeting.

A member entitled to attend and vote at the annual 

general meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to 

attend, speak and vote in his stead. A proxy need not 

be a member of the company.

The form of proxy is only to be completed by those 

shareholders who are:

● holding shares in certificated form; or

●  recorded on sub-register in dematerialised 

electronic form in ‘own name’.

All other beneficial owners who have dematerialised 

their shares through a CSDP or broker and wish to 

attend the annual general meeting, must instruct 

their CSDP or broker to provide them with a Letter of 

Representation, or they must provide the CSDP or 

broker with their voting instructions in terms of the 

relevant custody agreement entered into between 

them and the CSDP or broker. Proxy forms should be 

forwarded to reach the Company’s transfer 

secretaries or the Company secretary by not later 

than 14h00 on Monday, 8 November 2004. The 

completion of a proxy form will not preclude a 

member from attending the meeting.

By order of the board

A C Widegger Sandton

Company secretary 22 September 2004

Notice of annual general meeting (continued)
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Financial year-end 30 June

Annual general meeting October/November

Reports

Announcement of results for the half year February

Announcement of annual results August

Annual financial statements September

Dividends

Declaration Interim February

   Final August

Payment Interim March/April

   Final September/October 

Members’ diary
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For use at the eighteenth annual general meeting of members to be held on Wednesday, 10 November 2004 at 
The Lodge, 38 Wierda Road West, Wierda Valley, Sandton at 14h00.

I/we, the undersigned

of

being the registered holder/s of ordinary shares

hereby appoint

or failing him,

or failing them, the chairman of the meeting as my/our proxy to act for me/us and vote for me/us on my/our 
behalf as indicated below at the annual general meeting of the company to be held on Wednesday, 10 November 
2004 at 14h00 and at any adjournment thereof.

In favour of Against Abstain

1. Adoption of the annual financial statements

2. Re-election of retiring directors

2.1 Mr D C Coutts-Trotter

2.2 Mr C Ross

2.3 Mr A C Widegger

3. Approval of non-executive directors’ fees:

3.1 to the chairman of the board, R330 000;

3.2  for their services as directors, R60 000 each;

3.3  to the chairman of the audit committee, R50 000;

3.4  to the other members of the audit committee, 
        R25 000 each;

3.5 to the chairman of the remuneration committee, R45 000; 

3.6  to the other members of the remuneration committee, 
        R22 500 each;

3.7 to the chairman of the risk committee, R35 000;

3.8 to the other members of the risk committee: R17 500;

3.9 to the chairman of the BEE committee, R25 000; and

3.10 to the other nembers of the BEE committee, R12 500.

4. Amendments to the Share Incentive Scheme

5. Place sufficient unissued shares under the control of the 
directors for purposes of the City Lodge Hotels Share Incentive 
Scheme

Signature    Date

Form of proxy
City Lodge Hotels Limited
Registration number: 1986/002864/06
Share Code: CLH         ISIN: ZAE 000001483
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NOTES

1.  Each member is entitled to appoint one or more proxies (who need not be a member(s) of the company) 
to attend, speak and vote (either on a poll or by show of hands) in place of that member at the annual 
general meeting.

2.  A member may insert the name of a proxy or the names of two alternative proxies of the member’s choice in 
the space provided, with or without deleting the words “the Chairman of the annual general meeting”. All 
deletions must be individually initialled by the member, failing which they will have not been validly 
effected. The person whose name appears first on the form of proxy and who is present at the annual 
general meeting shall be entitled to act as proxy to the exclusion of the persons whose names follow.

3.  Voting instructions for each of the resolutions must be completed by filling the number of votes (one per 
ordinary share) under the “For”, “Against” or “Abstain” headings on the Proxy Form. If no instructions are 
filled in on the Proxy Form, the Chairman of the annual general meeting, if the Chairman is the authorised 
proxy, or any other proxy shall be authorised to vote in favour of, against or abstain from voting as he/she 
deems fit.

4.  A member or his/her proxy is entitled but not obliged to vote in respect of all the ordinary shares held by the 
member. The total number of votes for or against the resolutions and in respect of which any abstention is 
recorded may not exceed the total number of shares held by the member.

5.  If this form has been signed by a person in a representative capacity, the document authorising that person 
to sign must be attached, unless previously recorded by the company’s transfer secretaries or waived by the 
Chairman of the annual general meeting.

6.  The Chairman of the annual general meeting may reject or accept any form of proxy that is completed and/
or received other than in accordance with these instructions and notes.

7. Any alterations or corrections to this form of proxy have to be initialled by the signatory(ies).

8.  The completion and lodging of this form of proxy will not preclude the relevant member from attending 
the annual general meeting and speaking and voting in person to the exclusion of any proxy appointed by 
the member.

9.  Forms of proxy have to be lodged with or posted to the company, c/o Computershare Investor Services 2004 
(Pty) Limited, 70 Marshall Street, Johannesburg, 2001 (PO Box 61051, Marshalltown, 2107), to be received by 
not later than 14h00 on Monday, 8 November 2004.

10.  This proxy form is to be completed only by those members who either still hold shares in a certificated form, 
or whose shares are recorded in their own name in electronic form in the sub-register.

11.  Shareowners whose dematerialised shares are held in the name of a nominee and wish to attend the annual 
general meeting must contact their Central Securities Depository Participant (CSDP) or broker who will 
furnish them with the necessary letter of authority to attend the annual general meeting. Alternatively they 
have to instruct their CSDP or broker as to how they wish to vote. This has to be done in terms of the 
agreement between the shareowner and the CSDP or the broker.

12.  Shareowners who wish to attend and vote at the meeting must ensure that their letters of authority from 
their CSDP or broker reach the transfer secretaries by not later than 14h00 on Monday, 8 November 2004.

City Lodge Hotels Limited 2004
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